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MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL plc

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present their report and the consolidated financial statements of Morgan Stanley & Co
International plc (the “Company”™) and all of 1ts subsidiary and associated undertakings (together the “Group™),
together with the Company’s balance sheet and related notes for the year ended 31 December 2009 The prior
accounting period 1s a thirteen month period to 31 December 2008, due to a change in the accounting reference
date n the prior period and therefore comparatives are not entirely comparable with amounts shown for the
current pertod The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
applicable Umted Kingdom (“UK”) law and International Financial Reporung Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted
by the European Unton (‘EU”) The Company’s balance sheet and related notes have been prepared mn
accordance with apphcable UK law and accounting standards

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group’s profit for the year, after tax, 1s $125 mullion (2008 $29 mullion)

During the year the Company paid an intenim dividend of $200 muillion on the ordinary shares (2008 $ml) No
final dividend 1s proposed (2008 $ml) A dividend of $31 mullion was paid on the Class B preference shares
during the period (2008 $42 million) A dividend of 31 million was paid on the Class C preference shares
during the period (2008 $nil)

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Group s the provision of financial services to corporations, governments and
financial mstitutions  As part of the previously announced transaction to combine Morgan Stanley’s Global
Wealth Management Group (“GWM?") and the busmesses of Citigroup Inc’s Smuth Barney operations, the
Group's European, Middle East and Africa (“"EMEA”) GWM wtroducing broker activities were reorganised
and transferred to a consolidated joint venture, Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC (“MSSB™) (see note 34),
from 1 June 2009 Other than this, there have not been any sigmficant changes m the Group’s principal
activities 1n the pertod under review and no sigmificant change n the Group’s principal business 15 expected
The Company 1s authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authonty (“FSA™)

The Company operates branches in Korea, France, Greece, the Netherlands, the Dubai International Financial
Centre, the Qatar Financial Centre and New Zealand A further branch was opened m Switzerland on 8
February 2010

The Group's ultimate parent undertaking and controlling entity 1s Morgan Stanley, which, together with the
Group and Morgan Stanley’s other subsidiary undertakings, form the Morgan Stanley Group (the “Morgan
Stanley Group™)

BUSINESS REVIEW

The consolidated income statement for the year 1s set out on page 9 Comparing the year to 31 December 2009
to the 13 month penod to 31 December 2008, the Group’s profit for the period after tax has increased by
$96 million to $125 million The Group’s revenues improved across all businesses during 2009, however the
performance continues to be impacted by challenging market conditions As a consequence of the Morgan
Stanley Group's improved performance during 2009, revenues have been negatively impacted by the narrowing
of own credit spreads on certain of the Group's 1ssued financial instruments that are accounted for at fair value

The Group’s net (nterest expense has reduced by 89% to $222 million Interest income and interest expense
have reduced by 77% and 79% respectively This decrease 1s driven by sigmificant reductions m secured
financing activity, coupled with declining interest rates Net gams on available-for-sale financial assets
decreased by $1,199 million to $16 million, in 2008, the Group received significant dividend income from non-
consolidated subsidiaries that are now being consolidated in 2009 The Group’s other expenses have reduced by
159 Other expenses have reduced 1n most areas, with sigmficant reductions 1n brokerage costs and staff costs
compared to the prior period

The Morgan Stanley Group operates a number of intra-group policies to ensure that, where possible, revenues
and related costs are matched These policies can, amongst other things, result in losses being incurred on other
Morgan Stanley Group entities, as a result of Group activities, that would otherwise have been transferred to the
Group In prior periods these policies have reduced the impact of difficult market conditions on the Group’s
performance Following reviews throughout 2009, these policies have been refined and as a result the
performance of the Group has been sigmificantly impacted by accelerating the transfer of losses tnto the Group
that were previously held on other Morgan Stanley entities Further details of these policies are contained n
note 35 to the consohdated financial statements




MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL plc

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

The consolidated statement of financial position presented on page 13 of the financial statements shows
reductions 1n the Group’s total assets and total habuities Total assets and total hiabilities have decreased by 5%
and 4% respectively as at 31 December 2009 when compared to 31 December 2008 The reduction 1n total assets
and total liabilities has been driven by reductions of $41,584 million and $36,649 mullion 1n financial assets
classified as heid for trading and financial iiabilities classified as held for trading respectively These movements
are primarily due to reductions in the Group’s derivative instruments, driven by market volatility 1n the period,
although the change 1n net derivatives 1s minor These reductions have been partially offset on the asset side by
an increase of $26,096 million in reverse repurchase agreements and $6,030 million 1n other recervables On the
labilities side the movement 1n financial hlabilities classified as held for trading has been partially offset by
increases of $14,303 mullion and $9.312 mllion 1n repurchase agreements and trade payables Although
repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements have increased compared to 31 December 2008, the current
positions remamn significantly lower than the average position duning 2008 Duning 2009, the Group has
continued to review and actively manage its capital position As part of this capital management, the Group has
repaid $4,400 million of subordinated loans and repurchased $1,250 million of 1ssued class C preference share
capital This capital management activity has had a significant impact on the Group’s cash flow during the year,
as presented on page 12 of the financial statements

The performance of the Group 1s included 1n the results of the Morgan Stantey Group which are disclosed 1n the
Morgan Stanley Group’s Annual Report on Form 10-K to the United States Securities and Exchange
Commussion The Morgan Stantey Group manages 1ts key performance ndicators on a global basis but n
consideration of individual legal entittes For this reason, the Company’s Directors believe that providing
performance indicators for the Group itself would not enhance an understanding of the development,
performance or position of the business of the Group

Current market conditions

During 2009, global market and economuc conditions improved and global capital markets began to recover from
the severe downturn that occurred at the end of 2008 Economic conditions however continue to be challenging
These conditions present difficulties and uncertamnty for the business outlook which may adversely impact the
financial performance of the Group in the future

Durning the year ending 31 December 2008, the Morgan Stanley Group took certain steps to respond to the
stresses experienced n global financial markets and to strengthen the Morgan Stanley Group’s overall capital
and hgqudity position, mncluding partictpation in the US Government’s Troubled Asset Relief Program
(“TARP”) In mid 2009, as a result of 1s strong capital position, Morgan Stanley received approval from the US
Treasury to repay the $10 billion TARP nvestment received in 2008 Morgan Stanley continues to actively
manage 1ts capital and hiquidity position to ensure adequate resources are available to support the activities of the
Morgan Stanley Group, including its subsidiary entiies The risk management section below sets out the
Group’s and the Morgan Stanley Group’s policies for the management ot liquidity and cash flow risk and other
sigmficant business risks Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements provides quahitative and quantitative
disclosures about the Group’s management and exposure to risks, mcluding hiquidity risk

Taking all of these factors mnto consideration and as disclosed further 1n note 2 to the conschdated financial
statements, the Directors have no reason to behieve that the Group will not have access to adequate resources to
continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis 1 prepaning the annual report and financial statements

The Group has exposure to residential mortgage backed securities-related risk (“RMBS”) As at 31 December
2009 the amount recognised on the Group balance sheet n relation to RMBS 15 $468 mullion (2008 $105
million) The Group continues to have exposure to commercial mortgage-backed securities (“CMBS”) anising
from 1ts trading activities As at 31 December 2009 the amount recognised on the balance sheet 1n relation to
CMBS 15 $610 million (2008 $669 million)




MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL plc

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Group 1s mvolved with various entities in the normal course of business that may be deemed to be special
purpose entities (“SPEs”) The Group’s interests i SPEs include debt and equity interests and derivative
instruments, and these interests pnimarily anse from trading activity and structured transactions Consolidation of
SPEs 15 determuned 1n accordance with the Group’s accounting policies As at 31 December 2009 the total assets
of SPEs in which the Group has an interest, but which are not consohidated by the Group, are $3,669 million
(2008 $7,673 million) and the Group’s maximum exposure o loss relating to such SPEs 15 $43 mulhon (2008
$124 million} The Group’s consolidated balance sheet includes $3,474 mullion of assets ansing from
consolidated SPEs (2008 $3,639 mullion) The Group’s maximum exposure to loss relating to these assets 1s
$1,813 mullion (2008 $2,073 million)

Risk management

Risk 1s an mherent part of both Morgan Stanley’s and the Group’s business activity and 1s managed by the Group
within the context of the broader Morgan Stantey Group The Morgan Stanley Group seeks to identify, assess,
monitor and manage each of the various types of risk mvolved i its activities on a global basis, 1n accordance
with defined policies and procedures and m consideration of the individual legal entities The Group’s own risk
management policies and procedures are consistent with those of the Morgan Stanley Group

Market risk

Market nisk refers to the nisk that a change in the level of one or more market prices, rates, indices, imphed
volatilities (the price volatlity of the underlying instrument imputed from option prices), correlations or other
market factors, such as hquidity, will result 1n losses for a position or portfolio

The Group 1s managed within the Morgan Stanley Group’s global framework The market risk management
policies and procedures of the Group are consistent with those of Morgan Stanley Group, including reporting of
matenial risks identified to appropriate key management personne! of the Group Sound market risk management
1s an 1ntegral part of the Group’s culture The various business umits and trading desks are responsible for
ensuring that market risk exposures are well-managed and prudent The market risk department (s responstble for
ensuring transparency of material market risks, monmtoring comphance with established lirmits, and escalating
risk concentrations to appropriate semor management To execute these responsibilities, the Morgan Stanley
Group montors its market risk against limits on aggregate risk exposures, performs a variety of risk analyses and
maintains the Value at Risk (“VaR") system A variety of hmts are designed to control price and hiquidity risk
Market nisk s momtored through various measures statistically (using VaR and related analytical measures), by
measures of position sensiutivity, and through routime stress testing and scenario analyses The material nisks
identified by these processes are summarised and reported to senior management

The Group’s trading VaR at 31 December 2009 1s $44 milhon compared with $27 mullion at 31 December 2008
The increase 1n trading VaR 1s primanly due to increased interest rate and credit spread VaR The overall change
m VaR reflects the Group’s strategy across its businesses to take advantage of the opportumities presented by
market conditions

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of loss anising from borrower or counterparty default when a borrower, counterparty
or obligor does not meet 1ts obligations

The Morgan Stanley Group manages credit risk exposure on a global basis as well as giving consideration to
each mdividual legal entity It does this by ensuring transparency of material credit risks, ensuring comphance
with established hmits, approving material extensions of credit, escalating nisk concentrations to appropriate
senior management and mitigating credit risk through the use of collateral and other arrangements

Liquudity and funding risk

Liquidity and funding risk refers to the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its funding obligations in a
tumely manner Liquidity risk stems from the potentiat risk that the Group will be unable to obtain necessary
funding through borrowing money at favourable interest rates or maturity terms, or selling assets m a timely
manner and at a reasonable price




MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL plc

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Morgan Stanley Group's senior management establishes the overall liquidity and capital policies of the
Morgan Stanley Group The Morgan Stanley Group’s liquidity and funding risk management policies are
designed to mitigate the potential risk that the Morgan Stanley Group and the Group may be unable to access
adequate financing to service i1ts financial obhigations without matenial adverse franchise or busmess impact
The key objectives of the hquidity and funding risk management framework are to support the successful
execution of the Morgan Stanley Group’s and the Group’s business strategies while ensuring sufficient lhiquidsty
through the business cycle and during periods of stressed market conditions The Morgan Stanley Group has
established regional commuttees to oversee the activities of its subsidiaries from a regional perspective

In managing both the Group’s and the Morgan Stanley Group’s hquidity and funding risk the composition and
size of the entire balance sheet, not just financtal habilities, 15 monutored and evaluated A substantial portion of
the Group and Morgan Stanley Group's total assets consist of liquid marketable securities and short-term
receivables ansing from us sales and trading activities The liquid nature of these assets provides the Group and
the Morgan Stanley Group with flexibility 1n financing and managing its business

This hquidity and funding risk management framework continues to provide sufficient hquidity to the Morgan
Stanley Group and to the Group, and the Group’s capital and hiquidity position 1s satisfactory

Basel I Pillar 3 disclosures

The disclosures made 1n order to comply with the Financial Services Authority's rules, which implement in the
UK the EU Directives underlying the revised caputal adequacy framework, are available on the Morgan Stanley
website

DIRECTORS

The following Directors held office throughout the year and to the date of approval of this report (except where
otherwise shown)

C D S Bryce

W A Chammah (Chairman)

K Clark (resigned 30 June 2009)

A Classen

R Hoornweg (left on 17 December 2009)
G G Lynch {appointed 08 October 2009)
D M McCarthy {resigned 29 January 2009)
D R Nicol

F R Petitgas

D Simiscalco

C E Woodman (appownted 12 March 2009)

DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Qualifying indemmity provisions {as defined in section 234 of the Compames Act 2006) were 1n force during the
year and at the date of the Directors’ report for the benefit of all the Directors of the Company under a Directors’
and Officers” Liability Insurance policy taken out by Morgan Stanley, the Company’s ultimate parent company
and pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s articles of assoctation

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Morgan Stanley International Limited (*MSI”), the Company’s ulumate UK parent undertaking, has an Audit
Committee which assists the Boards of MSI, the Company and other of MSI’s subsidiary undertakings n
meeting their responsibitities 1n ensuring an effective system of internal control and compliance, and 1n meeting
their external financial reporting obligations The Audit Commuttee meets regularly and reports to the Board on a
quarterly basis




MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL plc

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 9 December 2009 the UK government announced proposed legislation in its Pre-Budget Report imposing a
Bank Payroll Tax The legislation was enacted on 8 April 2010 as part of the Finance Act The tax applies to
discretionary bonuses over a certain amount awarded to certain employees within scope (“Banking Employees™)
in the peried from 9 December 2009 1o 5 April 2010 The hability for the tax will be that of the entity that
benefits from the services of the Banking Employees, rather than the employing entity The Group 1s still
evaluating the impact of this legislaton and has recogmised a charge of $256 millien in 2010, when the
legislation was enacted, based on the mimimum amount currently estimated will be payable by the Group in
August 2010 Due to the ongoing uncertainties regarding the application, scope and implementation of the
legistation, the final payment amount may differ from this estimated financial effect

POLICY AND PRACTICE ON PAYMENT OF CREDITORS

The Group's and the Company's trade creditors balances are compnsed primarily of unsetiled secunities
transactions with exchanges, clearing houses, market counterparties, individual investors and other Morgan
Stanley Group undertakings It 1s the Company’s policy that these transactions are settled in accordance with the
standard terms of the relevant exchange or market and disclosure of creditor days 1s not considered a relevant
measure

AUDITORS

Deloitte LLP have expressed thewr willimgness to continue i office as auditors of the Company and a resolution
to re-appoint them will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditors
Each of the persons who are Directors of the Company at the date when this report 1s approved confirms that

« so far as each of the Directors 15 aware, there 15 no relevant audit information (being information needed by the
Group's auditors 1n connection with preparing their report) of which the Group’s auditors are unaware, and

+ each of the Directors has taken all the steps that he / she ought to have taken as a Director to make himself /
herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditors are aware of that
mformation

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies
Act 2006

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by DANIY N T e YO

Director

22 Apul 2010




MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL plc

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for preparing their report and the consolidated financial statements 1n accordance
with applicable law and regulations Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for
each financial year The Directors are required by the IAS Regulation to prepare the group financial statements
under IFRSs as adopted by the European Union The group financial statements are also required by law to be
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that IFRS financial statemenis present fairly for each financial year
the Group's financial posinon, financial performance and cash flows This requires the faithful representation of
the effects of transactions, other events and conditions 1n accordance with the defimitions and recognition criteria
for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out 1n the International Accounting Standards Board's 'Framework
for the preparation and presentation of financial statements' In wvirtually all circumstances, a far presentation
will be achieved by compliance with all applicable IFRSs However, Directors are also required to

(a) properly select and apply accounting policies,

(b) present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information,

{c) provide additional dssclosures when comphance with the specific requirements 1n TFRSs are nsufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s
financral position and financial performance, and

(d) make an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a gong concern

The Directors have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law)
The parent company financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period In prepaning these financial statements, the
Directors are required to

(a} select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
(b) make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

(c) state whether apphicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained 1n the financial statements, and

(d) prepare the financial statements on the gomg concern basis uniess 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue 1n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial posttion of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the parent Company financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasenable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The Directors, the names of whom are set out on page 4 of the Directors’ report, confirm to the best of their
knowledge

+ 1n accordance with rule 4 1 12(3)(a) of the Financial Services Authority’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules,
the consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board and as endorsed by the EU,
have been prepared 1n accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards and give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Group and the undertakings included n the
consolidation taken as a whole, and

« the management report represented by the Directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with rule
4 1 12(3)(b) of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, and includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Group and the undertakings included n the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal nisks and uncertainties that the Group faces

Approved by the Board and signed on 1ts behalf by TayAA) M ST

Director

22 April 2010




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MORGAN
STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL plc

We have audited the Consolidated and Company financial staterments (the “financial statements™) of Morgan
Stanley & Co International plc for the year ended 31 December 2009, which comprnise the Consolidated Income
Statement, the Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes 1n
Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and
Company Balance Sheet and the related notes 1 to 36 for the Consolidated financial statements and the related
notes | to 21 for the Company financial statements The financial reporting framework that has been apphied 1n
the preparation of the group financial statements 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umion The financial reporting framework that has been applied
m the preparation of the Company financial statements 1s applicable law and Umted Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with chapter 3 of part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explamned more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view Qur
responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and International Standards
on Audiing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s
{APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s
and the Company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of sigmificant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the
financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opimon

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and the Company’s affairs
as at 31 December 2009 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended,

. the Group financial statements have been properly prepared n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Umion,

. the Company financial statements have been properly prepared m accordance with Umited Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act

2006, and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opimion the information given 1n the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF MORGAN
STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL plec (CONTINUED)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following, under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report
to you 1f, n our opimion

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been recerved from branches not visited by us, or
the Company financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
we have not recetved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

(e G

Oliver Grundy
Semor Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, England

72 Apd 2010



MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL plc

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Year ended 31 December 2009

Note 1 December
Year ended 2007 to
31 December 31 December
2009 2008
$millions $millions
Net gains on financial instruments classified as held for 3,833 2,960
trading
Net gains on financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss 57 1,319
Net gains on available-for-sale financial assets 16 1,215
Interest income 4 4,181 18,530
Interest expense 4 (4,403 (20,572)
Other income 5 239 434
Other expense 6 (3,326) (3,935)
PROFIT / (LOSS) ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 597 (49)
Share of losses of joint venture 14 - (25)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary - 41
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 597 (33)
Income tax (expense) / credit 7 (472) 62
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR / PERIOD 125 29
Atinbutable to
Equity holders of the Company 120 26
Minority interest 5 3
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR /PERIOD 125 29

All operattons were continuing 1n the current and prior period
The notes on pages 14 to 82 form an ntegral part of the financial statements




MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL pl¢

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended 31 December 2009

Note 1 December
Year ended 2007 to
31 December 31 December
2009 2008
$millions $millions
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 125 29
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Foreign currency translation differences on foreign operations (38) 42
Fair value reserve
Available-for-sale finuncial assets
Net change 1n fair value recogmised directly in equity (7) (1)
Net amount transferred to consolidated mcome statement - -
Actuarial (losses) / gains on defined benefit pension ptans 33 (2) !
Net current and deferred tax on items taken directly to equity 2 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AFTER INCOME (45) 42
TAX
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 80 71
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 73 68
Minority interest 7 3
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 80 71

The notes on pages 14 to 82 form an ntegral part of the financial statements




MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL plc

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2009

Equity
Currency Capital Capital atinbutable
Share Share tramslation redemption contnbutien Fair value Retained toequmty  Minorty
capital  premum reserve reserve reserve reserve earmngs holders interest  Total equity

$mulons  $multions  $mullons  $mllions $mullrons  $mullions $mulhons $milhons  $millions $mullions
Balance at | 4,328 513 (64) 149 3 3 3,068 8,000 63 8,063
December 2007
Profit for the - - - - - 26 26 3 29
period
Foreign currency - - 42 - - - - 42 - 42
translation
differences on
foreign operations
Net change mn fair . - - - - n - (1) - (H
value recognised
directly in equity
Actuanal gain - - - - - - | 1 - t
Share based - - - - - 3 3 - 3
payments
Capital infusion - - - - - 1 1
Balance at 31 4328 513 (22) 149 3 2 3,098 8071 67 8,138
December 2008
Profit for the year - - - - - 120 120 5 125
Foreign currency - - 40) - - (40 2 (38)
translation
differences on
foreign operations
Net change m fair - - - - - ) 0 - )
value recogmised
directly in equity
Actuanal loss - - - - - - (2) 2 - 2)
Net deferred tax on - - - - - 2 2 - 2
items taken directly
1o equity
Preference share (1,250) - - 1,250 - - (1,250) (1,250} - (1,250)
repurchase
Net capual - - - - - - 50 50 - 50
contribution
Dividends - - - - - - (2c1) (201} - (201)
Balance at 31 3,078 513 (62) 1,399 3 (€))] 1,815 6,743 74 6,817
December 2009

The notes on pages 14 to 82 form an integral part of the financial statements
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MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL plc

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 December 2009

Note

NET CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING 23(b)
ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets

Dividends from available-for-sale financial assets

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale financial assets
Acquusition of jont venture

Dhisposal of associate

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired

Proceeds from sale of subsidiary, net of cash disposed

Net capital contribution ansing from MSSB jouwnt venture 34

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repurchase of preference shares

Dividends paid to preference share holders of the Company
Repayments of subordinated loans

Interest paid on subordinated loans

Dividends paid to equity holders of the Company

Captal infusion by menority interest

NET CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Currency translation differences on foreign currency cash
balances

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE

BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF  23(a)
THE PERIOD

The notes on pages 14 to 82 form an integral part of the accounts

1 December
Year ended 2007 to
31 December 31 December
2009 2008
$millions $millions
(424) (5,321)

(1) (6) 1

. 1 ;
- (5,944)
16 1,215

38 10,711

- (8) ‘l

4 178 |
- (526)
- 143

50 - '
107 5,764
(1,250} -
3D 42)
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MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL plc
Registration No 2068222

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2009
Note 31 December 31 December
2009 2008
$millions $millions
ASSETS
Loans and receivables
Cash at bank 8 13,580 19,988
Secunties borrowed 25,394 30,790
Reverse repurchase agreements 83,331 57,235
Trade receivables 51,642 51,532
Other receivables 9 16,184 10,154
190,131 169,699
Financial assets classified as held for trading (of which
approximately $54,185 mullion (2008 $46.682 mullion) were
pledged to various parties) 10 244,073 285,657
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or oss 11 1,907 1,395
Available-for-sale financial assets 12 43 87
Current tax 558 460
Deferred tax assets 19 47 173
Prepayments and accrued income 19 134
Property, plant and equipment 13 16 21
Associates and joint ventures 14 7 t
TOTAL ASSETS 436,801 457,637
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial hiabilities at amortised cost
Bank loans and overdrafts 126 451
Secuniiies loaned 44,306 45,786
Repurchase agreements 65,766 51,463
Trade payables 64,557 55,245
Other payables 15 33,748 35,190
Subordinated loans 16 8,550 12,950
Preference shares 17 786 786
217,839 201,871
Financial liabilities classified as held for trading 10 203,555 240,204
Financial habilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss 11 7,879 5,878
Provisions 18 22 29
Current tax 381 116
Deferred tax labilities 19 7 9
Accruals and deferred income 297 1,390
Retirement benefit obligations 33 4 2
TOTAL LIABILITIES 429,984 449,499
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
Share capital 21 3,078 4,328
Share premium account St3 513
Other reserves 1,337 132
Retained earnings 1,815 3,098
6,743 8,071
Minority interest 74 67
TOTAL EQUITY 6,817 8,138
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 436,801 457,637

These financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for 1ssue on 22 April 2010
Signed on behalf of the Board

Durector
DAVID r VS
The notes on pages 14 to 82 form an integral part of the financial statements




MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL plc

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2009

L

2.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Group s the provision of financial services to corporations, governments,
financial nstitutions and individual mvestors The Group’s ultimate parent undertaking and conirolling
entity 15 Morgan Stanley which, together with the Group and Morgan Stanley’s other subsidiary
undertakings, form the Morgan Stanley Group The Company s a pubhc limited company incorporated
and domiciled m England and Wales, with its registered office at 25 Cabot Square, Canary Whartf,
London, El4 4QA The Company 1s authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority
(“FSA™)

BASIS OF PREPARATION
i Statement of compliance

The Group has prepared 1its consolidated annual financial statements 1n accordance with IFRS adopted by
the EU The primary financial statements 1n this document are presented sn accordance with International
Accounting Standards (“1AS™) 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’

During 2008, the Company changed 1its accounting reference date from 30 November to 3! December to
alhign with the changed year end of its ulumate parent undertaking, Morgan Stanley Ths change resulted
tn a reporting pertod of thirteen months to 31 December 2008 The comparative figures reflected 1n the
financial statements are for a thirteen month period to 31 December 2008 and therefore are not entirely
comparable with amounts shown for the current year

ii New standards and interpretations adopted during the period

The following standards and interpretations relevant to the Group’s operations were adopted during the
year Except where otherwise stated, the standards and interpretations did not have a matenal impact on
the Group’s financial statements

IAS 1| ‘Presentation of Financial Statements (revised)’ was 1ssued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) in September 2007 for application 1n accounting periods beginning on or after
I January 2009 The Group adopted the revised standard during the year resulting in the renaming and
re-ordening of the pnimary statements and related minor changes to disclosure

Amendments to TFRS 7 ‘Fuancial Instruments Disclosures’ Improving disclosures about financial
instruments’ was 1ssued by the IASB 1n March 2009 for application 1n accounting pertods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009

An Amendment to IAS 23 ‘Borrowing Costs’ was 1ssued by the IASB 1n March 2007 for apphication m
accounting pertods beginning on or after | January 2009

An Amendment to IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment’ — Vesting conditions and cancellations was issued by
the IASB n January 2008 for retrospective application m accounting periods beginning on or after |
January 2009

IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ was 1ssued by the IASB 1in November 2006 for apphication mn accounting
periods beginning on or after | January 2009 The Group chose to early adopt IFRS 8 with effect from |
December 2006, which resulted in minor changes to disclosure

An Amendment to IFRS | ‘First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’ and IAS
27 ‘Consolidated and separate financial statements’ — Cost of an mvestment n a subsidiary, jowntly
controlled ennty or assoctate was 15sued by the IASB 1n May 2008 for apphication n accounting periods
beginming on or after 1 January 2009

As part of the May 2008 Annual Improvements to IFRS, the IASB made amendments to the following
standards that are relevant to the Group’s operations IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’, 1AS
16 ‘Property, plant and equipment’, I1AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’, 1AS 20 ‘Accounting for Government
Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance’, 1AS 23 ‘Borrowing Costs', 1AS 27 ‘Consohidated and
separate financral statements’, IAS 28 ‘Investments n Associates’, 1AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’, 1AS
38 ‘Intangible Assets’ and IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recogmition and Measurement” The
amendments were made for application m accounting periods beginmng on or after 1 January 2009




MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL plc
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2009

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
iii New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations
relevant to the Group’s operations were 1n i1ssue by the IASB but not yet mandatory The Group does not
expect that the adoption of the following standards and 1nterpretations will have a material impact on the
Group’s financial statements

New standards and interpretations to be adopted when endorsed by the EU

Amendments to IFRIC 9 ‘Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives’ and 1AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments
Recogniton and Measurement’ - Embedded derivanves’ were 1ssued by the IASB in March 2009 for
application in accounting periods ending on or after 30 June 2009 The amendment will be applied by the
Group once 1t has been endorsed by the European Union (“EU™)

New standards and interpretations that do not affect the current year

IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ This was revised by the IASB in January 2008 for application in
accounting periods beginning on or after | July 2009 The revised standard was endorsed by the EU n
June 2009

IFRS 9 Financial struments was 1ssued by the IASB in November 2009 for retrospective application in
accounting periods beginning on or after t January 2013 Although there are expected to be changes to
the presentation of financial instruments by the Company, there 15 not expected to be a significant impact
on net assets

IAS 27 "Consolidated and separate financial statements’ was revised by the IASB n January 2008 for
application n accounting periods begmnuing on or after 1 July 2009 The revised standard was endorsed
by the EU in June 2009

As part of the May 2008 Annual Improvements to IFRS, the IASB made amendments to IFRS 5 ‘Non
current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’ The amendments were made 1in May 2008, for
application 1n accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 These Annual Improvements to
IFRSs were endorsed by the EU 1n January 2009

As part of the April 2009 Annual Improvements to IFRS, the IASB made amendments to the following
standards that are relevant to the Group’s operations IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment’, IFRS 5 ‘Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operanons’, IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’, 1AS |
‘Presentation of Fiancial Statements’, 1AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows', IAS 17 ‘Leases’, 1AS 18
‘Revenue’, IAS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’, 1AS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’, 1AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments
Recogmition and Measurement’ The amendments are for apphication n accounting periods beginning
from dates from | July 2009

An amendment to IFRIC 14 ‘Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement’ was 1ssued by the IASB 1n
November 2009 for application in annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011

IFRIC 17 ‘Dustributions of non-cash assets to owners’ was 1ssued by the IASB in November 2008 for
applicauon n accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

iv  Basis of measurement

The financial statements of the Group are prepared under the historical cost convention modified by the
inctusion of certain financial instruments at fair value
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MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL ple
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2009

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
v The going concern assumption

The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position, are set out in the Business Review sections of the Director’s report on pages |
to 5 In addition, the notes to the financial statements include the Group’s objectives, policies and
processes for managing 1ts caputal, us financtal risk management objectives, details of its financial
instruments, and 11s exposures to credit risk and hquidity nisk

As set out n the Directors’ report, the Group operates within the global hquidity management framework
of the Morgan Stanley Group Throughout the difficult market conditions, this framework has continued
to provide sufficient liquidity to the Morgan Stanley Group and to the Group, and the Group’s capital and
liquidity position 1s satisfactory

Takimng all of these factors 1nto consideration, the Directors believe 1t 1s reasonable 1o assume that the
Group will have access to adequate resources to continue n operational existence for the foreseeable
future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basts 1n preparing the annual report and
financial statements

vi  Use of estimates and sources of uncertainty

The preparation of financial information requires the Group to make estimates and assumptions regarding
the valuation of certain financial instruments, pension obligations, the outcome of litigation and other
matters that affect the financial statements and related disclosures The Group believes that the estimates
utitlised 1n preparing the financial statements are prudent and reasonable Actual results could differ
materially from these estumates

vii  Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to 31 December 2009 The financial statements for the subsidianes are prepared
for the same reporting pertod as the Group, using consistent accounting policies The financial statements
of overseas subsidiaries are translated into US dollars as described in note 3(b) Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date that the Group gains control until the date that control ceases

Intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements

Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets not owned, directly or indirectly, by
the Group and are presented separately in the income statement and within equity 1 the consclidated
statement of financial position, separately from parent sharcholders’ equity

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a. Functional currency

Items 1ncluded in the financial statements are measured and presented in US dollars, the currency of the
primary economic environment i which the Group operates

All currency amounts 1n the financial statements and Directors’ report are rounded to the nearest rillion
dollars

b. Foreign currencies

All monetary assets and habilities denominated in currencies other than US dollars are transiated mto US
dollars at the rates ruling at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position Assets and
habilities of the overseas branches and subsidiaries are translated into US dollars using the closing rate
method Transactions 1n currencies other than US dollars are recorded at the rates prevalling at the dates
of the transactions Translation differences arising from the net investments in the overseas branches and
subsidiaries are taken to the currency translation reserve All other translation differences are taken
through the consolidated income statement, with the exception of non-monetary (1 e equity) available-
for-sale financial assets, where foreign exchange differences and the related tax amounts are recorded m
the farr value reserve 1n equity until the mvestment 15 sold Exchange differences recogmised in the
consolidated income statement are presented in ‘Other ircome’ or ‘Other expense’, except where noted 1n
3(c) below
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MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL plc
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2009

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. Financial instruments

The Group classifies its financial assets 1n the following categories on imuial recogmtion financial assets
classified as held for trading, financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-
sale financial assets, and loans and recervables

The Group classtifies tts financial liabilities into the following categories on initial recognition financial
habihties classified as held for trading, financial habihities designated at fair value through profit or loss,
and financial habilhities at amortised cost

More information regarding these classifications 1s included below
i Financial instruments classified as held for trading

Financial snstruments classified as held for trading, including derivatives, are imtially recorded on trade
date at fair value All subsequent related gains and losses, including foreign exchange differences, are
reflected 1n the consolidated income statement 1n ‘Net gains on financial instruments classified as held
for trading’ Transaction costs are excluded from the initial and subsequent farr value measurement of
the financial mstrument These costs are recognised 1n the consohdated 1income statement in *Other
expense’

ii Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss

The Group has designated certain financial assets and financial habilities at fair value through profit or
loss when either

» the financial assets or financial liabihities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a farr
value basts,

* the designation at fair value eliminates or sigmificantly reduces an accounting mismaich which would
otherwise arise, or

¢ the financial asset or financial habitity contains an embedded derivative that sigmificantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required under the coniract

From the date the transaction 1n a financial instrument designated at fair value 1s entered nto (trade
date) until settlement date, the Group recogmises any unrealised fair value changes in the contract as
financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss On settlement date, the fair value of
consideration given or received 1s recognised as a financial instrument designated at fair value through
profit or loss All related gains and losses, including foreign exchange differences, are reflected 1n the
consolidated income statement 1 ‘Net gamns on financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss’ Transaction costs are excluded from the initial fair value measurement of the financial
instrument These costs are recogmised 1n the consohidated income statement in ‘Other expense’

iii Available-for-sale financial assets

Equity mstruments classified as available-for-sale are recorded on trade date and are mmtially
recogmsed and subsequently measured at faurr value Dividend income and impairment losses are
recorded 1n the conschdated income statement 1n ‘Net gains on available-for-sale financial assets’ All
other gamns and losses are recognised in the ‘Fair value reserve’ in equity, including foreign exchange
differences and reversals of impairments

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisitton of the financial asset are added to the
fair value on imtial recognition

On disposal or impairment of an available-for-sale financial asset, the cumulative gain or loss 1n the
‘Fair value reserve’ 1s transferred to and recogmised 1n the consolidated income statemeat and reported
in ‘Net gains on available-for-sale financial assets’
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2009

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

iv Loans and receivables and financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables are mitially recognised on settlement date at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less allowance for imparrment Interest is
recogmsed n ‘Interest income’ 1n the consolidated income statement, using the effective imterest rate
method Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 1ssue of the financial asset
or financial hability are added to or deducted from the fair value on tmitial recognition

The effective interest rate method 1s a method of calcutating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial hability (or a group of financial assets or financial habilities) and of allocating the interest
income or Interest expense over the expected life of the financial asset or financial hability The
effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset or hiability (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to
the carrying amount of the financial asset or hability The effective interest rate 1s established on imtial
recognition of the financial asset and hability The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all
fees and commussions paid or recerved, transaction costs, and discounts or premiums that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly aunbutable 1o
the acquisttion, 1ssue or disposal of a financial asset or habulity

Impairment losses and reversals of impairment losses on financial assets classified as loans and
receivables are recogmsed 1n the consolidated income statement in either ‘Other expense’ or ‘Other
income’

Financial habilities held at amortised cost are immtially recogmsed on settlement date at fair vatue and
subsequently measured at amortised cost Interest 1s recognised 1n the consolidated income statement 1n
‘Interest expense’ using the effective interest rate method as described above

In the course of financing its busimness and as part of its trading activities, the Group enters into
arrangements which nvolve the sale of securities with agreements to repurchase, the purchase of
securities with resate agreements, the lending of secunities with collateral received and the borrowing of
securities with collateral given Cash collateral balances repayable and accrued nterest ansing under
repurchase agreements and secunties lending arrangements are classified as ‘Financial hiabilities at
amortised cost’ and the related securities, where owned by the Group, are included 1in ‘Financial
instruments classified as held for trading’ Cash collateral balances receivable and accrued interest
arising under resale agreements and securities borrowing arrangements are classified as ‘Loans and
receivables’ Securities received by the Group under resale arrangements and secunties borrowing
arrangements are generally not recogmsed on the consolidated statement of financial position

The redeemable preference shares 1ssued by the Group are classified as financial habilities at amortised
cost 1n accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement Dividends on these redeemable
preference shares are recognised n the consolidated income statement 1n ‘Interest expense’ using the
effective interest rate method
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2009

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
d. Fair value of financial instruments
FGH' value measurement

Fair value 15 the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a lrability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties, in an arm’s length transaction

In determining fair value, the Group uses various valuation approaches A hierarchy of inputs 15 used 1n
measuring fair value that maximises the use of observable inputs and mimmuises the use of unobservable
inputs by requiring that the most observable mnputs be used when available Observable inputs are inputs
that market participants would use 1n pricing the asset or hability developed based on market data
obtained from sources independent of the Group Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Group’s
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use 1n pricing the asset or hability,
developed based on the best information avatlable in the circumstances

The avaabtlity of observable inputs can vary from product to product and 1s affected by a wide vanety of
factors, ncluding, for example, the type of product, whether the product 1s new and not yet established 1n
the marketplace, the liqudity of markets and other charactenstics particular to the transaction To the
extent that valuation 1s based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable in the market,
the determination of fair value requires more judgement

The Group uses prices and inputs that are current as of the measurement date, including during peniods of
market dislocation In periods of market dislocation, the observability of prices and inputs may be
reduced for many instruments

Valuanon techniques

Fair value for many cash and Over the Counter (“OTC”) contracts 15 derived using pricing models
Pricing models take nto account the contract terms (including maturity), as well as multiple wputs
including, where applicable, equity prnices, interest rate yield curves, credit curves, correlation,
creditworthiness of the counterparty, option volatility and currency rates The impact of the Group’s own
credit spread 15 also considered when measuring the fair value of liabilities, including OTC denivative
contracts, Where appropriate, valuation adjustments are made to account for various factors such as
hiquidity risk (bid-ask adjustments), credit quality, and model uncertainty These adjustments are subject
to judgement, are applied on a consistent basis and are based upon observable inputs where available
The Group generally subjects all valuations and models to a review process 1mtially and on a periodic
basis thereafter

Fair value 1s a market-based measure considered from the perspective of a market participant rather than
an entity-specific measure Therefore, even when market assumptions are not readily available, the
Group’s own assumptions are set to reflect those that market participants would use 1n pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date

Gains and losses on mception

In the normal course of business, the fair value of a financial instrument on mtial recogmition 15 the
transaction price (1e the farr value of the consideration given or received) In certain circumstances,
however, the fair value will be based on other observable current market transactions 1 the same
mstrument, without modification or repackaging, or on a valuation techmque whose variables include
only data from observable markets When such evidence exists, the Group recogmses a gain or loss on
inception of the transaction

When unobservable market data has a significant impact on determining fair value at the inception of the
transaction, the entire 1mitial change 1n fair value indicated by the valuation technique as at the transaction
date 18 not recogmsed 1mmediately 1n the conselidated income statement and s recogmsed instead when
the market data becomes observable
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
e. Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, an assessment 1s made as to whether there 1s any objective evidence of impairment
in the value of a financial asset classified as either available-for-sale or loans and receivables Impairment
losses are recogmised 1f an event has occurred which will have an adverse impact on the expected future

“cash flows of an asset and the expected impact can be reliably estumated

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are measured as the difference between cost (net
of any principal repayment and amortisation) and the current fair value When a decline 1n the fair value
of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recogmised through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and there 1s evidence that the asset 1s impared, the cumulative loss that had been
recognised through the consolidated statemnent of comprehensive income 1s removed from reserves and
recogmsed 1n the consolidated ncome statement within ‘Net gains and losses on available-for-sale
financial assets’

Impairment losses on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate Such impairment losses are recogmised in the
consolidated income statement within ‘Other expenses’ and are reflected against the carrying amount of
the impared asset on the consolidated statement of financial position Interest on the impaired asset
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount based on the original effective interest rate of the
asset

Subsequent increases n fair value of previously impaired equity available-for-sale financial assets are
reported as fair value gains 1n the statement of comprehensive income and not separately 1denufied as an
mmparment reversal  For all other financial assets, if in a subsequent year, the amoumt of the estimated
mmparrment loss decreases because of an event occurring after the ympaiwrment was recognised, the
previously recogmsed impairment loss 15 reversed as detailed o note 3{c){(i1 and 1v)

f. Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
circumstances indicate that the carrymg amount may not be recoverable An impairment loss 1s
recogmsed for the amount by which the asset’s carrymg amount exceeds its recoverable amount The
recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash gererating units) Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date

g Fees and commissions

Fees and commussions classified within ‘Other income’ 1n the consolhidated income statement include
account servicing fees, investment management fees, sales commissions, placement fees, advisory fees
and syndication fees

Fees and commissions classified within ‘Other expense’ include transaction and service fees These
amounts are recognised as the related services are performed or received
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
h. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of depreciation and any provision for impairment 1n
value, which are included within *Other expense’ in the consoltdated 1ncome statement For assets in the
course of construction (generally fit-out costs), interest that 1s directly attnbutable to the construction of
the qualifying asset 1s capitalised as a cost of the asset

For premises held under operating leases, a reinstatement provision 1s recogmsed for the estimated cost to
reinstate the premuses at the end of the lease period (see note 3(n) below) When the reinstatement
provision 15 established and included within ‘Provisions” in the consolidated statement of financial
position, an equivalent asset 1s recogmsed and included in the cost of leasehold improvements at the
immtial present value of any reinstatement obligations The discount effect included in the reinstatement
provision 1s reversed over time using a constant effective yield method and included within *Other
expense’ 1n the consohdated income statement The rewnstatement asset 15 depreciated over the useful
economic hife of the relevant leasehold improvement asset

Depreciation 1s provided on property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to write oft the cost of the
assets on a straight line basis over their expected useful lives as follows

Leasehold improvements - shorter of remaining lease term and 25 years
Fixtures, fitings and equipment - 3to 8 years
i Investments in associates and joint ventures

The Group’s investments In 1ts associates and jomnt ventures are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting

Under the equity method, the investment 1n the associate or joint venture 1s carried on the statement of
financial positien at cost, including attributable goodwill, and 1s adjusted for post-acquisition changes in
the Group’s share of total assets less total liabilities of the associate or joint venture The Group’s share of
1ts assoctates’ or joint ventures’ post-acquisition profits or losses 1s recognised m the consohdated income
statement, its share of post-acquisition movements 1n other comprehensive income 1s recognised n other
comprehensive income within the consolidated statement of comprehensive income lLosses are only
recogmised 1n excess of the mvestment where the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture Profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the
assoctate or Jomnt venture, Distnibutions received from associates or joint ventures reduce the carrying
amount of the investment

j- Income tax
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently paid and payable, and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit may differ from net profit
as reported 1n the consolidated income statement because 1t excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible 1n other years and 1t further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The
Group’s liability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date Current tax 1s charged or credited 1n the consolidated income statement,
except when 1t relates to items charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income or equaty, n
which case the current tax 1s also dealt with 1n other comprehensive income or equity respectively
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
L Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and lLabilities n the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet liability method Deferred tax
habilities are generally recogmsed for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recogmsed to the extent that 1t 1s probable that taxable profits will be available against winch deductible
temporary differences can be utihised

Deferred tax habilities are recogmsed for taxable temporary differences arising on investments 1n
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse n the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each reporting date and limited to the extent that
it 15 probable that sutficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply 1n the period when the hability 15
settled or the asset 1s reahised Deferred tax 1s charged or credited 1n the consolidated income statement,
except when 1t relates to items charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income or equity, n
which case the deferred tax 1s dealt with 1n other comprehensive income or equity, respectively

Current tax assets are offset aganst current tax habihities and deferred tax assets are offset against
deferred tax habilities when there 1s a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax habilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and habilities on a net basis

m.  Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged 1n the consolidated income statement on a straight line
basis over the lease term Lease incentives are allocated on a straight line basis over the lease term as a
reduction to rental expense

Rentals receivable under operating leases are credited in the consohdated income statement on a straight
line basis over the lease term Imtial direct costs tncurred 1n negotiating and arranging the lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recogmised n the consohdated income statement on a
straight line basis over the lease term Lease incentives are aliocated on a straight line basis over the lease
term

n Provisions

Provisions are recogmsed when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, when 1t 15
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and when a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

0. Employee compensation plans

Morgan Stanley operates equity based compensation plans on behalf of the Group and, n relation 10
which, the Group pays Morgan Stanley 1n consideration of the procurement of the transfer of shares to
employees The cost of equity based transactions with employees 1s measured based on the fair value of
the equity instruments at grant date  Far value of stock umit awards is based on the market price of
Morgan Stanley shares and fair value of stock option awards ts estimated using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model, which takes into account the option’s exercise price, its expected term, the risk free
materest rate and the expected volatility of the market price of Morgan Stantey shares Non-market
vesting conditions are not taken mto account when measuring fair value, but are reflected by adjusting
over time the number of equity instruments included 1n the measurement of the transaction such that the
amount ultimately recognised reflects the number that actually vest The expense for [FRS 2 ‘Share-based
payments' ("IFRS 2") purposes 1s taken directly to the consolidated income statement, the corresponding
credit to reserves 1s reduced to the extent that payments are due to Morgan Stanley in respect of these
awards
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
0. Employee compensation plans (continued)

Morgan Stanley also mantains deferred compensation plans for the benefit of certain employees that
provide a return to the participating employees based upon the performance of various referenced
investments  Such awards are recognised over time, n accordance with the awards’ vesting conditions,
within ‘Other payables’ n the consohdated statement of financial position and are remeasured to fair
value at the end of each reporting period The related expense 1s recorded within ‘Other expense’ in the
consolidated income statement The Group economically hedges the exposure created by these deferred
compensation schemes by entering 1nto derivative transactions with other Morgan Stanley undertakings
The derivatives are recognised within ‘Financial instruments classified as held for trading’ and the related
profit and loss 1s recorded within ‘Net gains on financial instruments classified as held for trading’

P Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution plan, the Morgan Stanley Defined Contribution Plan The
contributions due are recognised 1n the consolidated income statement when payable

The Group also operates a defined benefit pension plan, the Morgan Stanley Defined Benefit Plan For the
defined benefit plan, the plan obligations are measured on an actuanal basis 1n accordance with the advice
of an independent qualified actuary using the projected umit credit method and discounted at a rate that
reflects the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the
plan habilihes Plan assets are measured at their fair value at the reporting date A surplus or deficit of
plan assets over hiabilities 1s recogmised 1n the consolidated statement of financial position as an asset or a
hability respectively The value of any asset recogmsed 15 restricted to the sum of any unrecognised
actuarial losses and past service costs plus the present value of available refunds and reductions n future
contributions to the plan The current service cost and any past service costs together with the expected
return on plan assets less the unwinding of the discount on the plan habiliies 15 charged to ‘Other
expense’ n the consolidated income statement Actuarial gamns and losses that arise in calculating the
Group's obligation 1n respect of a plan are recogmsed 1n other comprehensive income, n the penod 1n
which they occur

INTEREST INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE

‘Interest income’ and ‘Interest expense’ represent total nterest income and total interest expense for
financial assets and financial Liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss

No other gains or losses have been recogmised 1n respect of loans and receivables other than as disclosed
as ‘Interest income’ within the consolidated income statement

No other gains or losses have been recogmised in respect of financial liabiliies measured at amortised cost
other than as disclosed as ‘Interest expense’ within the consolidated mcome statement

Interest expense includes a dividend of $31 mitlion paid on the Class B preference shares during the
period (2008 $42 milhion)

OTHER INCOME

1 December
Year ended 2007 to
31 December 31 December
2009 2008
$millions $millions

Fee and commussion income
Advisory fees 147 276
Trust and other fiduciary activities 92 123
Foreign exchange gains - 35
239 434
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6.

OTHER EXPENSE
Year ended 1 December 2007 to
31 December 2009 31 December 2008
$millions $millions
Fee and commission expense
Brokerage fees 410 732
Durect staff costs 189 226
Management recharges relating to staff costs borne by 1,630 1,716
other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings
Management recharges from other Morgan Stanley Group 307 168
undertakings relating to other services
Operating lease rentals 9 9
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 7 7
Foreign exchange losses 25 -
Business development and corporate services 473 487
Audrtors remuneration
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of 3 3
the Company’s accounts
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of I 1
the subsidiaries’ accounts
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for other 1 1
SErvVICes
QOther operating expense 271 585
3,326 3,935

Included within both direct staff costs and management recharges relating to staff costs borne by other
Morgan Stanley Group undertakings 15 an amount of $230 million (2008 $470 millicn) mn relation to
equity-based compensation plans These costs reflect the amortisation of equity-based awards granted to
employees over the last three years and are therefore not directly aligned with other staff costs in the
current pertod Also included within direct staff costs and management recharges relating to staff costs
borne by other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings 1s an amount of $49 mullion (2008 $87 million) in

relation to defined contribution pension plans

The average number of employees of the Group including the Directors, 1s analysed below

Number

Year ended 1 December 2007 to
31 December 31 December
2009 2008
Company and mstitutional securities infrastructure 159 164
Business umts and other 192 238
351 402

The costs of staff are analysed below
Year ended 1 December 2007 to
31 December 31 December
2009 2008
$millions $millions
Wages and salaries, including termination costs 166 211
Social security costs 21 12
Pension costs 2 3
189 226

The Group paid no remuneration to the Company’s Direciors during the current or prior period but
incurred management recharges n respect of Directors” services provided to the Group The amount of
remuneration recetved by Directors 1n respect of their services to the Group 15 disclosed n note 35

24




MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL plc
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2009

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE / (CREDIT)

1 December
Year ended 2007 to
31 December 31 December
2009 2008
$mullions $millions
Current tax expense
Umited Kingdom corporation tax charge
— current year / period 195 (304)
- adjustments m respect of prior years 2) 3D
Double taxation relief
- current year / period (39) (64)
- adjustments 1n respect of prior years 49 5
Overseas tax
— current year / period 151 461
— adjustment n respect of prior years (N (2)
347 65
Deferred tax credit
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences 97 (127)
Adjustment 1n respect of prior years 28 -
472 (62)

The Company and 1ts subsidiary undertakings in the Umted Kingdom (“UK”) provide for UK corporation
tax at 28% Overseas subsidiary undertakings provide for taxation at the appropriate rates 1n the countries
1n which they operate

1 December
Year ended 2007 to
31 December 31 December
2009 2008
$mllions $millions
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit / (loss) before income tax 597 (33)
Income tax using the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 167 {9)
28%
Impact on tax of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 8 10
Interest not deductible 2 24
Group relief surrendered for nit consideration 176 147
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 24 33
Carry forward tax losses 6 3
Under / (over) provided 1n prior years 68 30
Tax exempt income / {(expense) | 213)
Non deductible preference share dividends shown as interest 9 12
expense
Withholding tax expensed )] -
Other 20 (39)
Total income tax expense / (credit} in the consolidated income 472 (62)
Statement

The Group has a policy of surrendering tax-deductible losses (“‘group relief”) for ml consideration to other
members of the Morgan Stanley UK tax group Within the Group, a number of subsidiary undertakings
generate tax-deductble losses which are surrendered to other Morgan Stanley subsidiary undertakings
outside the Group In addition to the amount charged to the consolidated income statement, the aggregate
amount of current and deferred tax relating to items that are taken directly to equity, was $2 mallton
(2008 $nul charge)
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE / (CREDIT) (CONTINUED)

2009 2008
Tax Tax
Before (expense)/ Before (expense)/
tax benefit Net of tax tax benefit Net of tax
$millions $milliens $millions $millions $mullions $millions
Foreign currency translation
differences on foreign
operations 40 - (40) 42 - 42
Fair value reserve
Net change n faw value of
available-for-sale assets )] 2 (5) (H - (h
Actuarial (losses) / gains on
defined benefit pension plans (2) - (2) 1 - l
Other comprehensive income (49) ) A7) 42 - 42
CASH AT BANK
Included within cash at bank 1s an amount of $7,962 mullion (2008 $10,616 mullion) which represents
segregated client money, held 1n accordance with the FSA’s Client Money Rules, and an amount of $235
milion (2008 $269 million} which represents other client money
OTHER RECEIVABLES
1 December
Year ended 2007 to
31 December 31 December
2009 2008
$millions $millions
Amounts held at exchanges 169 125
Amounts due from other Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings 14,136 8,451
Other 1,879 1,578
16,184 10,154
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10.

11.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
TRADING

Financial assets and financial habilities categorised as held for trading are summarised 1n the table below

2009 2009 2008 2008
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
$miillions $millions $millions $millions

Fair value
Government debt securities 12,871 11,859 11,553 5,406
Corporate equities 44,703 15,667 43,429 11,990
Corporate and other debt 20,504 6,476 15,223 1,014
Derivatives 165,995 169,553 215,452 221,794
244 073 203,555 285,657 240,204

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss consist primarily of the following
financial assets and financial habilities

Prepard Over the Counter (“OTC") contracts The risk on these financial instruments, both financial
assets and financial liabilities, 1s primarily hedged using financial instruments categorised as held for
trading including equity securities and nterest rate swaps These prepaid OTC contracts are designated at
fair value as such contracts, as well as the financial instruments with which they are hedged, are risk
managed on a fair value basis as part of the Group’s trading portfolio, and the risk 1s reported to key
management personnel on this basis

Structured notes These relate to financial liabihities which anse from selling structured products
generally n the form of notes or certificates These structured notes are designated at fair value as the
risks to which the Group 1s a contractual party are risk managed on a fair value basis as part of the
Group’s trading portfolio, and the risk 1s reported to key management personnel on this basis

Other financial assets and liabtittes These include financial assets and liabihities such as those that arise
upon the consolidation of certain special purpose entities those that arise as a result of continuing
recogmtion of certain financial assets and the simultaneous recogmition of an associated financial habihity
These financial assets and liabilities are designated at fair value as the risks to which the Group 1s a
contractual party are risk managed on a fair value basis as part of the Group’s trading portfolio, and the
sk 1s reported to key management personnel on this basis
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11.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

Financial assets and financial habilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are summarised 1n
the table below

2009 2009 2008 2008

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

$millions $millions $millions $millions

Prepaid OTC contracts 1,784 2,213 1,205 1,197
Structured notes - 670 - 1,273
Other financial assets and habilities 123 4,996 190 3,408
1,907 7,879 1,395 5,878

The difference between the carrying amount of financial lhiabilities destgnated at fair value through profit
or loss and the contractual amount due at maturity s $190 million higher The change in fair value
recogmsed through the consolidated income statement attributable to own credit risk 1s a loss of $203
million (2008 $307 million gawm) and cumulatively 15 $122 million gain (2008 $325 million gain) This
change 15 determined as the amount of change 1n 1ts fair value that 1s not attributable to changes in market
conditions that give rise to market risk

12. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Fmancial assets that are categorised as available-for-sale consist of corporate equities

Movement in available-for-sale financial assets 2009 2008
$millions $millions
At the beginning of the year / period 87 6,226
Addithions - 6,664
Changes 1n fair value recognised in the fair value reserve (N n
Disposals (38) (11,417
Foreign exchange retranslation recognised 1n the currency 1 (1,385)
translation reserve
At the end of the year / period 43 87
Of which:
Other available-for-sale financial assets 43 87
43 87

The disposals during the prior period mainly relate to mvestments made by the Group 1n unconsolidated
companies as part of its structured products business Foreign exchange translation arises on assets held in
enfities with a non US dollar funciional currency beng translated into US dollars on consohdation by the
Group
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2009

Cost

At I January 2009

Additions

Foreign exchange revaluation on assets held in
overseas branches and subsidiaries

Disposals

At 31 December 2009

Depreciation

At | January 2009

Charge for the year

Foreign exchange revaluatton on assets held in
overseas branches and subsidiaries

Disposals

At 3] December 2009

Net book value
At 31 December 2009

2008

Cost

At | December 2007

Additions

Foreign exchange revaluation on assets held 1n
overseas branches and subsidiaries

Disposals

At 31 December 2008

Depreciation

At 1 December 2007

Charge for the period

Foreign exchange revaluation on assets held in
overseas branches and substdiaries

At 31 December 2008

Net book value
At 31 December 2008

Fixtures,
Leasehold fittings and
improvements equipment Total
$millions $millions $millions
25 20 45
- 1 1
1 1 2
(2 (i) (3
24 21 45
11 13 24
4 3 7
- 1 |
(2) (D 3
13 16 29
11 5 16
24 21 45
5 1 6
(3) (2) )
49 - 40
25 20 45
8 11 19
4 3 7
() (D (2)
11 13 24
14 7 21
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14.

15.

ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE

The Group holds an imterest in Tarvos Investments GmbH (“Tarvos™), a limited habiity company
incorporated 1n Germany The Group has contributed 50% of the capital in the company Tarvos 1s not
consohdated as the Group’s 50% holding results in the Group having significant influence rather than
control

During the year, the Group sold its nterest in Brencourt Mulu-Strategy Enhanced Dedicated Fund LP
(“Brencourt™), a limited partnership incorporated in the Cayman Islands The Company had contributed
approximately 99 9% of the capital in the partnership This hrted partnership was not conschdated by
the Group as the majority of the risks and rewards of the partnership are absorbed by entities outside the
Group, resulting in the Group having significant influence rather than control The sale of Brencourt
resulted 1n no net gawn or loss on disposal

The following presents the movement 1n the Group’s investments 1n Brencourt and Tarvos

2009 2008

$millions $milhons

At the beginning of the year / period 11 206

Addition - 8

Disposal 4) (178)

Share of loss for the year / period - (25)

At the end of the year / period 7 11
OTHER PAYABLES

2009 2008

$mllions $millions

Amounts owing to other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings 30,328 32,401

Other 3,420 2,789

33,748 35,190
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16. SUBORDINATED LOANS

The amounts subject to subordinated loan agreements are wholly repayable as shown below

17.

Counterparty Repayment Interest Rate 2009 2008
Date $millions $millions
Morgan Stanley Strategic 29 October 2026 LIBOR plus 644 1,494
Funding Limited 2 00%
Morgan Stanley 31 October 2025 LIBOR plus 7,906 7,906
International Finance S A 125%
Morgan Stanley 31 October 2026 LIBOR plus - 3.550
International Holdings Inc | %
8,550 12,950

All counterparties are part of the Morgan Stanley Group and all amounts outstanding are repayable at any
time at the Group's option, subject to seven business days’ notice to the FSA, which has the right under
the agreement to refuse consent to repayment

On 20 November 2009 the Group repa:d $3,550 milhion and $850 million under its loan facilities with
Morgan Stanley International Holdings Inc and Morgan Stanley Strategic Funding Limited respectively
These repayments were made as part of the Group’s capital management activities

The Group has not had any defaults of principal, interest or other breaches with respect to 1ts subordinated
loans during the period

PREFERENCE SHARES

Class B
preference shares
of $1 each:
$millions
Allotted and fully paid:
At 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2009 786

At 31 December 2009 the Company’s 1ssued share capital included 785,772,500 Class B non-cumulative
preference shares of $1 each, classified as lhabihities The holders of the Class B non-cumulative
preference shares of $1 each are entitled to receive a LIBOR-based dividend as defined 1n the Company’s
Articles of association The shares do not entitle holders to vote at any general meeting of the Company
On a return of caputal, the holders of the Class B redeemable non-cumulative preference shares shall rank
equally with the Company’s Class C non-redeemable non-cumulative preference shares (see note 21) in
priority to any other class of share
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18.

19.

PROVISIONS

Property Litigation Total

$millions $millions $millions
At | January 2009 3 26 29
Additional provisions 1 15 16
Provisions utilised £)) (23) (24)
Foreign exchange adjustment - 1 |
At 31 December 2009 3 19 22
Property

Property provisions represent the net present value of expected future costs of excess office space and the
net present value of expected future costs of remnstating leasehold improvements at the end of the lease

term that are released when the rewnstatement obligations have been fulfilled

Litigation matters

During the year the Group has been mvolved mn various continuing and other hitigation matters The
Directors are of the opimion that it would be seriously prejudicial to the position of the Group to disclose
details of individual continuing lingation matters and the amounts provided 1n respect of them

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Deferred taxes are calculated on all temporary differences under the hiability method The movement 10

the deferred tax account 1s as follows

2009 2008
Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax Deferred tax
asset liability asset liability
$millons $millions $mllions $millions
At the beginning of the 173 ® 49 (11)
year / period
Amount recogntsed n the (127 | 127 1
consolidated income
statement
Amount recogmsed 1n 1 1 3) -
equity Available-for-sale
financial assets
Foreign exchange - - - 1
adjustment
As at 31 December 47 (7) 173 (D
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19.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The deferred tax included 1n the consolidated statement of financial position and changes recorded 1n the
income tax expense are as follows

Deferred Deferred Consohdated Deferred Deferred Consohidated
tax asset tax habality Income tax asset tax liabihity Income
statement statement
2009 2000 2009 2008 2008 2008
$milhons $millions $mulions $nullions $mullions $mllions
Depreciation - 7 - 2 5 -
temporary differences
Deferred compensation 19 - 6 13 - )]
Tax losses camed - (13%) 135 135
forward
Available-for-sale | - - - n -
financial assets
Forecast curmrency - {5) 1 - 6) 1
hedges
Amounts not 17 - - 19 - -
recogmsed due to
unobservable market
data
Impact of tax rate - - - - - -
changes
Other temporary 3 (2) 1 [ 2) (2)
differences
47 ()] (125) 173 (2] 127

The deferred tax assets recognised are based on management’s assessment that 1t 1s probable that the
Group will have taxable profits against which the temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred tax assets have not been recogmsed 1n respect of the following temporary differences

2009 2008

$millions $millions

Unused tax losses 153 7
153 7

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, branches and
associates, for which deferred tax Liabilities have not been recogmsed 1s $ml (2008 $ml)
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20.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Group has entered into commercial leases on premises and equipment These leases have an average
life of between two and five years

2009 2008
$millons $millions
Mimimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases 9 9

recognised as an expense in the period

Future mimimum [ease payments under non-cancellable operating leases at 31 December 2009 and 31
December 2008 are due as follows

2009 2008

$millions $millions

Withim one year 8 9
In two to five years 22 27
Over five years 1 6
31 42

At 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008, the Group had the following outstanding commitments
and contingent habilities arising from off-balance sheet financial instruments

2009 2008

$millions $millions

Letters of credit 1 142
Loan commitments 26 1,039
Forward starting reverse repurchase agreements 18,458 10,993
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21.

EQUITY
Share capital

Class C, non-
cumulative,

preference Ordinary Ordinary
shares of $1 shares of $1 shares of £1 Total
each: each: each: shares:
$millions $millions $millions $mullions
Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January 2009 1,300 2,998 30 4,328
Repurchase in the year
23 December 2009 (1,250) - - (1,250)
At 31 December 2009 50 2,998 30 3,078

On 23 December 2009, the Company repurchased and cancetled 1,250,000,000 Class C non-redeemable
non-cumulative preference shares of $1 each, at par value

At 31 December 2009 the total 1ssued share capital equated to $3,078 mullion (2008 $4,328 mullion)
compnising 50,000,000 Class C non-redeemable non-cumulative preference shares of $1 each,
2,998,332,648 ordinary shares of $1 each and 17,615,107 ordinary shares of £1 each All 1ssued shares are
fully paid

The holders of the ordmary shares, wrespective of currency denomination, are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company
n accordance with the Company’s articles of association

The holders of the Class C non-redeemable non-cumulative preference shares of $1 each are entitled to
receive a LIBOR based dividend 1n priority to any other class of share in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association The holders of such shares in 1ssue shall carry such number of votes 1n aggregate
as represents 10% of the total voting nghts of all the members of the Company having a right to attend
and vote at general meetings On a return of capital, the holders of the Class C non-redeemable non-
cumulatrve preference shares shall rank equally with the Class B redeemable non-cumulative preference
shares (see note 17), 1n priority to any other class of share
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21.

22.

EQUITY (CONTINUED)

Other shares classified as financial liabilities

The terms of other shares classified as financial liabilities are detailed in note 17, ‘Preference shares’
Currency translation reserve

The ‘Currency translation reserve’ comprises all foreign exchange differences anising from the translation
of the total assets less total liabilities of foreign operations

Fair value reserve

The ‘Fair value reserve’ includes the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets held at the balance sheet date, prior to the investment being sold or impaired The tax
effect of these movements 1s also included in the ‘Fair value reserve’

Capital contribution reserve

The ‘Captital contribution reserve’ includes contributions of capital from the Group’s parent company to
subsidiaries of the Group

Capital redemption reserve

The ‘Capital redemption reserve’ represents transfers in prior years from retamed earnings in accordance
with relevant legislation

DIVIDENDS
2009 2008
Per Share Total Per Share Total
$ $millions $ $millions
Interim dividends on 011 2 - -
ordinary shares of £1 each
Interim dividends on 007 198
ordinary shares of $1 each
Dividend on class C 003 1 - -
preference shares
201 - -

The Directors have not recommended the payment of a final dividend out of the reserves available at
31 December 2009 (2008 $n:l)
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23.

ADDITIONAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

a. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances

which have less than three months maturity from the date of acquisition

Cash at bank
Bank loans and overdrafts

2009 2008
$millions $millions
13,580 19,988
(126) 45D
13,454 19,537

Included within ‘Cash at bank’ 1s $8,197 muilton (2008 $10,885 mullion) of segregated client funds that
are not avatlable for use by the Group The corresponding payable 1s recogmsed and included 1n

‘financial habilities at amortised cost’

b. Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the period
Adyustments for
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Net gains on available-for-sale investments
Interest income
Interest expense
Income tax expense
Share of loss of jont venture
Other expenses
Profit before changes 1n operating assets and liabilities

Change 1n operating assets
Net (increase) / decrease 1n loans and recervables
Net decrease n financial assets classified as held for trading
Net (increase) / decrease 1n financial assets designated at fasr
value through profit or loss

Change 1n operating habulities
Net increase / (decrease) 1n financial habilities at amortised
cost
Net (decrease) / increase 1n financial habilities classified as
held for trading
Net increase / (decrease) 1n financial habilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss
Net (decrease) / increase 1n provisions

Effect of foreign exchange movements
Cash used in operating activities
Interest received

Interest paid

Income tax pard

Net cash flows used in operating activities

2009 2008
$millions $millions
125 29

7 7

(16) (1,215)
(4,181 (18,530)
4,403 20,572
472 (62)

- 25

(2) 2

808 828
(26,698) 159,106
41,583 21,474
(512) 207
14,373 180,787
19,558 (205,813)
{36,649) 27,827
2,001 (8,770)
(N 22
(15,097) (186,734)
{460) 1,802
(376) 3.317)
4,156 19,209
(4.024) (20,310)
(180) (903}
(424) (5,.321)
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24.

EXPECTED MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The table below shows an analysis of assets and habihties analysed according to when they are expected

to be recovered or settled

At 31 December 2009

ASSETS
Loans and receivables
Cash at bank
Securities borrowed
Reverse repurchase agreements
Trade receivables
Other receivables

Fmancial assets classified as held for trading

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or
loss

Available-for-sale financial assets

Current tax

Deferred tax assets

Prepayments and accrued income

Property, plant and equipment

Associates and joint ventures

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Bank loans and overdrafts
Securities loaned
Repurchase agreements
Trade payabies
Other payables
Subordinated loans
Preference shares

Financial labilities classified as held for trading

Financial habilities designated at fairr value through
profit or loss

Provisions

Current tax

Deferred tax Liabilities

Accruals and deferred income

Retirement benefit obligations

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Less than Equal to or Total
twelve more than
months twelve
months

$millions $millions $millions

13,580 - 13,580

25.394 - 25,394

83,331 - 83,331

51,642 - 51,642

16,015 169 16,184

189,962 169 190,131

244,073 - 244,073

269 1,638 1,907

- 43 43

558 - 558

- 47 47

19 - 19

- 16 16

- 7 7

434,881 1,920 436,801

126 - 126

43,806 500 44,306

65,766 - 65,766

64,557 - 64,557

33,748 - 33,748

- 8,550 8,550

- 786 786

208,003 9,836 217,839

203,555 - 203,555

5,461 2,418 7,879

19 3 22

381 - 381

- 7 7

297 - 297

- 4 4

417,716 12,268 429,984
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EXPECTED MATURITY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2008

ASSETS
Loans and receivables
Cash at bank
Securities borrowed
Reverse repurchase agreements
Trade recervables
Other receivables

Financial assets classified as held for trading

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or
loss

Avalable-for-sale financial assets

Current tax

Deferred tax assets

Prepayments and accrued income

Property, plant and equipment

Associates and joiat ventures

Intangible assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Financial hiabilites at amortised cost
Bank loans and overdrafts
Securities loaned
Repurchase agreements
Trade payables
Other payables
Subordinated loans
Preference shares

Fiancial liabilities classified as held for trading

Financial habiuities designated at fair value through
profit or loss

Provisions

Current tax

Deferred tax liabihines

Accruals and deferred mcome

Retirement benefit obligations

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Less than Equal to or Total
twelve more than
months twelve
months

$millions $millions $millions

19,988 - 19,988

30,790 - 30,790

57,235 - 57,235

51,532 - 51,532

10,029 125 10,154

169,574 125 169,699

285,657 - 285,657

232 1.163 1,395

- 87 87

460 - 460

- 173 173

134 - 134

- 21 21

- 11 11

456,057 1,580 457,637

451 - 451

45,786 - 45,786

51,463 - 51,463

55,245 - 55,245

35,190 - 35,190

- 12,950 12,950

- 786 786

188,135 13,736 201,871

240,204 - 240,204

3,954 1,924 5,878

26 3 29

116 - 116

- 9 9

1,390 - 1,390

- 2 2

433,825 15,674 449,499
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SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information 1s presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical segments Both the
primary format, business segments, and geographical segments are based on the Group’s management
and nternal repoerting structure

Business segment

Morgan Stanley structures 1ts business segments primanly based upon the nature of the financial products
and services provided to customers and Morgan Stanley’s internal management structure The Group’s
own business segments are consistent with those of Morgan Stanley

The Group has one reportable business segment, Institutional Securities, which provides financial services
to corperations, governments, financial institutions and ndividual mvestors including sales, trading,
financing and market-making activities 1n equity and fixed income securities and related products,
including foreign exchange

Morgan Stanley’s Global Wealth Management and Asset Management segments also provide some
services through the Group For the thurteen month perwod ended 3f December 2008, these segments
were consudered reportable segments for the Group for the first time, as therr reported profit or loss
exceeded 10% of the Group’s profit or loss Based on the Group’s results for the year ended 31
December 2009, these segments no longer meet the threshold to be considered reportable segments under
IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ Accordingly the results for these segments are presented within *Other’ in
the tables below for both the current year and comparative period

Selected financial information to reconcile segment mformation to the Group’s consolidated information
15 presented below

Institutional

Consolidated income statement information Securities Other Total
Year ended 31 December 2009 $millions $millions $millions
Net gains on financial instruments classified as held

for trading 3,833 - 3,833
Net gains on financial instruments designated at fair

value through profit or loss 57 - 57
Net gains on available-for-sale financial assets 16 - 16
Net interest (261) 39 (222)
Other income 217 22 239
External revenues net of interest expense 3,862 61 3,923
Other expense (3,247) (79) (3,326)
Profit / (loss) on ordinary activities 615 (18) 597
Share of losses of associate and jomnt venture - - -
Profit / (loss} before tax 615 {(18) 597
Income tax (expense) / credit 477) 5 (472)
Profit / (loss) for the period 138 (13) 125
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SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Consolidated statement of financial position
information
As at 31 December 2009

Segment assets
Associate and joint venture
Total assets

Segment Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Other segment information
Property, plant and equipment capital expenditure
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Consolidated income statement information
13 months ended 31 December 2008

Net gains on financial instruments classified as held
for trading

Net gains on financial instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss

Net gains on available-for-sale financial assets

Net interest

Other income

External revenues net of interest expense
Other expense

Loss on ordinary activities

Share of losses of associate and joint venture
Net gain on disposal of subsidiary

Loss before tax
Income tax credit

Profit / (loss) for the period

Institutional
Securities Other Total
$millions $millions $millions
432,087 4,707 436,794
7 - 7
432,094 4,707 436,801
426,216 3,768 429,984
426,216 3,768 429,984
| - |
7 - 7
Institutional
Securities Other Total
$millions $millions $mllions
2,960 - 2,960
1,319 - 1,319
1,215 - 1,215
(2,149) 107 (2,042)
273 161 434
3,618 268 3,886
(3,646) {(289) (3,935)
(28) (21) {49)
(25) - (25)
4] - 41
(12) 2n (33)
56 6 62
44 (15) 29
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Consolidated statement of financial position Institutional

information Securities Other Total
As at 31 December 2008 $millions $millions $millions
Segment assets 452,996 4,630 457,626
Associate and joint venture 11 - 11
Total assets 453,007 4,630 457,637
Segment lLiabilities 445,821 3,678 449,499
Total Liabilities 445,821 3,678 449,499

Other Segment Information
Property, plant and equipment caprtal expenditure 6 - 6
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 7

Geographical Segments

The Group operates 1n three geographic regions as listed below
s Europe, Middle East and Africa (“EMEA”™)
*  Americas
s Asia

The following table presents selected consolhidated income statement and consohdated statement of
financial position information of the Group’s operations by geographic area The external revenues (net of
interest expense) and total assets disclosed 1n the following table reflect the regional view of the Group’s
operations, on a managed basis The basis for attributing external revenues (net of interest expense) and
total assets 1s determined by a combination of chient and trading desk location

Geographical EMEA Americas Asia Total
segments
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

$milhions $millions $millions $millions $millions $millions $millions $mullions
External 3,921 2,633 (8) 662 10 591 3,923 3,836
revenues net
of interest
Profit / (loss) 787 (1,268) 92) 836 (98) 399 597 (33)
before income
tax

Total assets 340,856 385,208 54,647 9,086 41,298 63,343 436,801 457,637
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management procedures

Risk 1s an mhereat part of both Morgan Stanley’s and the Group's business activity and 1s managed by
the Group within the context of the broader Morgan Stanley Group The Morgan Stanley Group seeks to
identify, assess, monutor and manage each of the vartous types of risk involved 1n 1ts business activities n
accordance with defined policies and procedures The Group's own risk management policies and
procedures are consistent with those of the Morgan Stanley Group

Significant risks faced by the Group resulting from its trading, financing and investment activities are set
out below

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk of loss arising from a borrower or counterparty default

The Morgan Stanley Group manages credit risk exposure on a global basis, but 1n consideration of each
individual legal entity, including those of the Group The credut risk management policies and procedures
of the Morgan Stanley Group include ensuring transparency of matenal credut nisks, ensuring compliance
with established hmits, approving material extensions of credit and escalating risk concenirations to
appropriate semor management Credit risk management policies and procedures for the Group are
consisient with those of the Morgan Stanley Group and include escalation to appropriate key management
personnel of the Group

The Group is exposed primarily to sigmficant single-name credit risk, requiring credit analysis of specific
counterparties, both wmtially and on an ongoing basis Credit risk management takes place at the
transaction, counterparty and portfolio levels In order to help protect the Group from losses resulting
from 1ts business activities, the Group analyses all material lending and derivative transactions and
ensures that the creditworthiness of the Group’s counterparties and borrowers 15 reviewed regularly and
that credit exposure 1s actively monitored and managed The Group assigns obligor credit ratings to its
counterparties and borrowers which are intended to assess a counterparty’s probabihity of default and are
derived using methodologies generally consistent with those used by external rating agencies For
lending transactions, the Group evaluates the relative position of its particular exposure 1n the borrower’s
capital structure and relative recovery prospects Where applicable, the Group also considers collateral
arrangements and other structural elements of the particular transaction The Group has credit gmdelines
that limit potential credit exposure to any one borrower or counterparty and to aggregates of borrowers or
counterparties, these limits are monitored and credit exposures relative to these Limits are reported to key
management personnel

As well as assessing and monitoring 1its credit exposure and risk at the individual counterparty level, the
Group also reviews its credit exposure and nisk to geographic regions As at 31 December 2009, credit
exposure was concentrated 1in North America and Western European countries In addition, the Group
pays particular attention to smaller exposures in emerging markets given their ugher risk profile Country
celling ratings are derived using methodologies generally consistent with those employed by external
rating agencies

The Group also reviews 1ts credit exposure and risk to types of customers At 31 December 2009, the
Group’s material credit exposure was to corporate entities (including financial institutions) and sovereign-
related entities

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required by the Group depends on an assessment of the credit risk of
the counterparty Collateral held 1s managed 1n accordance with the Group’s guwidelines and the relevant
underlying agreements The market value of securities received as collateral 1s monitored on a daily basts
and securities provided as collateral generally are not recognised on the consohdated statement of
financial position
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Reverse repurchase agreements and securities borrowed

The Group manages credit exposure anising from reverse repurchase agreements and securities borrowed
transactions by, 1n appropriate circumstances, entering 1nto master netting agreements and collateral
arrangements with counterparties that provide the Group, 1n the event of a counterparty default, the nght
to liquidate collateral and the right to offset a counterparty’s nights and obligations Under these reverse
repurchase agreements and securities borrowed transactions, the Group receives collateral, mclading U S
government and agency securities, other sovereign government obligations, corporate and other debt, and
corporate equittes The Group also monitors the fair value of the underlying securiies compared to the
related receivable or payable, including accrued interest, and, as necessary, requests additional collateral
to ensure such transactions are adequately collateralised

Derivatives

The Group may seek to mitigate credit risk from its derivatives transactions mm multiple ways At the
transaction level, the Group seeks to mitigate nisk through management of key risk elements such as size
and maturity The Group actively hedges its credit exposure arising from denivatives through various
financial instruments which may include single name, portfolio and structured credit derivatives
Additionally, the Group may enter nto master netting agreements and collateral arrangements with
counterparties These master netting agreements and collateral arrangements may provide the Group with
the ability to offset a counterparty’s nghts and obligations, to request additional collateral when necessary
and to liquidate the collateral m the event of counterparty default The Group momtors the
creditworthiness of counterparties to these transactions on an ongoing basis and requests additional
collateral in accordance with collateral arrangements when deemed necessary

Exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group as at 31 December 2009 1s disclosed below, based on
the carrying amount of the financial assets the Group believes 15 subject to credit risk, without taking
account of any collateral held or any other credit enhancement Exposure anising from financial
mstruments not recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position 1s measured as the
maximum amount that the Group could have to pay, which may be significantly greater than the amount
that would be recogmsed as a hability This table does not include receivables arising from pending
securities transactions with market counterparties The “unrated” balance represents the pool of
counterparties that individually generate no matenial credit exposure This pool 1s highly diversified,
monttored and subject to Limuts

Financial assets classified as held for trading, excluding derivatives, are subject to traded credit risk
through exposure to the 1ssuer of the financial asset, the Group manages thes ssuer credit risk through 1ts
market risk management nfrastructure and this traded credit risk s incorporated withm the VaR-based
risk measures included 1n the market nsk disclosure
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Exposure to credit risk by class
Class

Loans and recervables
Cash at bank
Securities borrowed
Reverse repurchase agreements
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Financial assets classified as held for trading
Dervatives

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

Unrecognised financial instruments
Letters of credst

Lease commitments

Loan commitments

Unsettled reverse repurchase agreements

Maximum exposure to credit risk by credit rating

Credit rating

AA

BBB
BB

B

CcCC

D
Unrated
Total

Gross credit Gross credit
exposure exposure
2009 2008
$mllions $millions
13,580 19,9838
25,394 30,790
83,331 57,235
34.112 41,652
15,948 9,782
151,578 193,072
1,907 1,395
325,850 353,914

| 142

31 42

26 1,039
18,458 10,993
344,366 366,130

Gross credit

Gross credit

exposure exposure
2009 2008
$millions $millions
11,351 9.466
107,219 125,645
170,854 179,664
14,126 7,986
3,551 6,324
24,876 14,507
5,336 602

| 45

7,052 21,891
344,366 366,130

At 31 December 2009 there were no financial assets past due but not impared (2008 None) At 31
December 2009 there were no financial assets individually impaired (2008 None)
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk 1s the risk that the entity may encounter difficulty in meeting obhgations associated with
financial lrabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset

The Morgan Stanley Group’s senior management establishes the overall liquidity and funding policies of
the Morgan Stanley Group and the hiquidity risk management policies and procedures conducted within
the Group are consistent with those of the Morgan Stanley Group The Morgan Stanley Group’s hiquidity
and funding risk management policies are designed to mitigate the potential risk that entities within the
Morgan Stanley Group, including thase of the Group, may be unable to access adequate financing to
service ther financial liatuhiies when they become payable without material, adverse franchise or
business impact The key objective of the hquidity and funding nsk management framework 1s to support
the successful execution of both the Group’s and the Morgan Stanley Group’s busmess strategies while
ensuring ongoing and sufficient hiqudity through the business cycle and during periods of stressed market
conditions

Liguedity management policies

The principal elements of the Morgan Stanley Group’s and the Group’s liquidity management framework,
are the Contingency Funding Plan (“CFP”) and lquidity reserves Comprehensive tinancing guidelines
(secured funding, long-term funding strategy, surplus capacity, diversification and staggered maturities)
support the Morgan Stanley Group, as well as the Group’s, target hquidity profile

Contingency Funding Plan CFP 1s the Morgan Stanley Group’s primary hiquudity risk management tool
The CFP models a potential, prolonged hquidity contraction over a one-year time period and sets forth a
course of action to effectively manage a hqudity event The CFP and hqudity risk exposures are
evaluated on an on-going basis and reported to the Firm Risk Commuittee, Asset / Liability Management
Committee, and other appropriate risk commuttees including the European Financial Risk Commuttee

CFP 15 produced on a Morgan Stanley Group as well as major group and subsidiary level, including the
Group, to capture specific cash requirements and cash avalability at various legal eatites The CFP
assumes that Morgan Stanley does not have access to cash that may be held at certain subsidianies due to
regulatory, legal or tax constraints but that the Group does have access to the cash or hquidity reserve
held by Morgan Stanley along with all other Morgan Stanley subsidiaries

The Morgan Stanley Group’s and the Group’s CFP model mcorporates scenarios with a wide range of
potential cash outflows during a hiquidity stress event, including, but not limited to, the following (1)
repayment of all unsecured debt maturmg within one year and no mcremental unsecured debt issuance,
(1) maturity roll-off of outstanding letters of credit with no further issuance and replacement of cash
collateral, (11) return of unsecured securities borrowed and any cash raised aganst these securities, (1v)
additional collateral that would be required by counterparties 1n the event of a three-notch long-term
credit ratings downgrade, (v) higher haircuts on or lower availability of secured funding, (v1) client cash
withdrawals, (vn) drawdowns on unfunded commitments provided to third parties, and {vm)
discretionary unsecured debt buybacks

Ligudity Reserves The Morgan Stanley Group and the Group seeks to maintain target hquidity reserves
that are sized to cover daily funding needs and meet strategic liquidity targets as outlined in CFP  These
liquidity reserves are held in the form of cash deposits and pools of central bank eligible unencumbered
securittes The Group’s hiquidity reserve 1s managed locally and consists of overnight cash deposits and
unencumbered U S and European government bonds, agencies and agency pass throughs In addition to
the liquidity reserve held by the Group, the Group has access to the hiquidity reserve held by Morgan
Stanley The Morgan Stanley hqudity reserve 15 managed globaily and consists of overmght cash
deposits and unencumbered U S and European government bonds, agencies and agency pass throughs

The Morgan Stanley Group and the Group believes that diversifying the form it which s hquidity
reserves are maintamed {cash and securities) enhances its ability to quickly and efficiently source funding
1n a stressed environment The Morgan Stanley Group’s and the Group’s funding requirements and target
liquidity reserves may vary based on changes to the level and composiion of 1ts balance sheet, uming of
specific transactions, client financing activity, market conditions and seasonal factors
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Funding management polictes

The Morgan Stanley Group’s funding management policies are designed to provide for financings that are
executed 1n a manner that reduces the risk of disruption to the Morgan Stanley Group’s and the Group’s
operanons The Morgan Stanley Group pursues a strategy of diversification of secured and unsecured
funding sources (by product, by investor and by region) and attempts to ensure that the tenor of the
Morgan Stanley Group’s, and the Group’s, liabilities equals or exceeds the expected holding period of the
assets bemng financed Maturities of financings are designed to manage exposure to refinancing risk in
any one pertod

The Morgan Stanley Group funds its balance sheet on a global basis through diverse sources These
sources may include the Morgan Stanley Group’s equity capital, long-term debt, repurchase agreements,
securities lending, deposits, commercial paper. letters of credit and lines of credit The Morgan Stanley
Group has active financing programs for both standard and structured products in the U S , European and
Asian markets, targeting global nvestors and currencies such as US dollar, Euro, British pound,
Austrahan dollar and Japanese Yen

In managing both the Group’s and the Morgan Stanley Group’s funding rnisk the composition and size of
the entire statement of financial position, not just financial habilittes, 1s monitored and evaluated A
substantial portion of the Morgan Stanley Group’s total assets consist of highly hiquid marketable
securities and short-term receivables anising from its Institutional Secunities sales and trading activities
The hiquid nature of these assets provides the Group and the Morgan Stanley Group with flexibility in
financing and managing 1ts business

Marurtty analysis

In the following maturnity analysis of financial habihities, derivative contracts and other financial habilines
held as part of the Group's trading activities are disclosed on demand and presented at far value,
consistent with how these financial hhabilities are managed Financial hiabihities designated at fair value
are disclosed according to their earliest contractual maturity, all such amounts are presented at their fair
value, consistent with how these financial liabilities are managed All other amounts represent
undhscounted cash flows payable by the Group arising from its financial habilities to earliest contractual
maturities as at 31 December 2009 Repayments of financial habilities that are subject to immediate
notice are treated as if notice were given immedhately and are classified as on demand This presentation
15 considered by the Group to appropnately reflect the liquidity risk ansing from those financial habilities,
presented 1n a way that 15 consistent with how the liquidity risk on these financial habilities n managed
by the Group
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Liquidity risk (continued)

More than 1 More than 3 More than 1

month but months hut year but
Lessthan lessthan3 lessthan1 less than 5 More than 5
On demand 1 month months year years years Total
31 December 2009 $mulhons $mllions $millions  $mullions  $mulhions $mllions $millions
Financial habilities
Financial ltabiliies at amortised cost
Bank loans and overdrafts 126 - - - - 126
Secunties loaned 37,800 1,335 1,968 2,703 500 - 44,306
Repurchase agreements 6,505 52,019 4617 2,650 - - 65,791
Trade payables 64,557 - - - - - 64,557
Other payables 33,748 - - - - - 33,748
Subordinated loans - 11 22 100 533 10,008 10,674
Preference shares * - - - 21 139 1,408 1,568
Financial habiliues classified as held for
trading
Denvanves 169,553 - - - - 169,553
Other 34,002 - - - - - 34,002
Financial habilizes designated at farr 4,750 104 86 521 1,283 1,125 7.879
value through profit or loss
Total financial habilities 351,041 53,469 6,693 5,995 2,465 12,541 432,204
Unrecogmsed financial instruments
Letters of credit 1 - - - . 1
Lease commitments 8 - - - 23 3
Loan commitments 26 - - - - - 26
Unsettled reverse repurchase agreements 18,458 - - - - - 18,458
Total unrecogmsed financial 18,493 - - - - 23 18,516

instruments

* Preference shares are assumed to be redeemed in 20 years

The Group does not expect that all of the cash flows associated with financial guarantees, letters of credits

and toan commitments will be required

48



MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL pic
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2009

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued)
More than 1 More than 3 More than 1

month but months but year but
Lessthan lessthan3 lessthanl less than 5 More than

On demand 1 month months year years years Total
31 December 2008 $mllions  $mulbons  $mullions  $mulions  $millions  $mulllons  $mmllions
Finanaal habilities
Financial habilities at amortised cost
Bank loans and overdrafts 451 - - - - - 451]
Secunities loaned 42,286 - 1,500 2,000 - - 45,786
Repurchase agreements 34,798 14,005 2,496 115 - - 51,504
Trade payables 55,245 - - - - - 55,245
Other payables 35,190 - - - - - 35,180
Subordinated loans - 29 58 262 1,395 17,217 18 961
Preference shares * - - - 31 125 1,412 1,568
Financial habthties classified as held for
trading
Denvatives 221,794 - - - - - 221,794
Other 18,410 - - - - - 18,410
Financial habiliies designated at fair 3,583 24 116 758 944 453 5,878

value through profit or loss

Total financial habilities 411,757 14,148 4,170 3,166 2464 19,082 434,787

Unrecogmised financial instruments

Letters of credit - 33 15 94 - - 142
Lease commuitments 9 - - - - 33 42
Loan commitments 1,022 - 1 16 - - 1,039
Unsettled reverse repurchase agreements 10,993 - - - - - 10,993
Total unrecogmsed finanaal 12,024 33 16 110 - 33 12,216
mstruments

* Preference shares are assumed to be redeemed in 20 years

The Group does not expect that all of the cash flows associated with financial guarantees, letters of credits
and loan comrmmuitments will be required
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market risk

Market risk refers 1o the nisk that a change in the level of one or more market prices, rates, indices,
implted volatlities (the price volatility of the underlying instrument imputed from option prices),
correlations or other market factors, such as liquudity, will result in losses for a position or portfolio

Sound market risk management 15 an integral part of the Group’s and the Morgan Stanley Group's
culture The Group 1s responsible for ensuring that market risk exposures are well-managed and prudent
and more broadly for ensuring transparency of material market risks, monitoring compliance with
established limuts, and escalating nsk concentrations to appropriate senior management

To execute these responsibilities, the Morgan Stanley Group monitors the market risk of the firm against
limits on aggregate rnisk exposures, performs a variety of risk analyses and maintains the Value at Risk
(“VaR™) system A variety of hmits are designed to control price and hqudity risk Market risk 1s
momitored through various measures statistically (using VaR and related analytical measures), by
measures of position sensitivity, and through routine stress testing and scenario analyses The material
risks identified by these processes are summarised and reported to semor management

The Group 1s managed within the Morgan Stanley Group’s global framework The market risk
management policies and procedures of the Group are consistent with those of the Morgan Stanley Group,
mcluding reporting of material risks 1dentified to appropriate key management personnel of the Group

Primary market rnisk exposures and market risk management

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group had exposures to a wide range of interest rates,
equity prices, foreign exchange rates and commodaty prices and the associated implied volatilities and
spreads, related to the global markets in which 1t conducts uts trading activities The Group 15 exposed to
interest rate and credit spread risk as a result of its market-making activities and other trading m interest
rate sensitive financial instruments (e g risk ansing from changes in the level or implied volatihity of
interest rates, the shape of the yield curve and credit spreads) The activities from which those exposures
arise and the markets in which the Group 1s active include, but are not limted to, the following
government debt, investment grade and non-investment grade corporate debt, interest rate denivatives,
emerging market corporate and government debt, and distressed corporate debt

The Group 15 exposed to equuty price and implied volatility rnisk as a result of making markets 1n equity
securities and derivatives as well as maintaimng proprietary positions The Group 1s exposed to foreign
exchange rate and imphed volatihty risk as a result of making markets in foreign currencies and foreign
currency denivatives and from holding non U S dollar-denominated financial instruments The Group 1s
exposed to commodity price and implied volanlity risk as a result of market-making activities and
maintammng positions 1n physical commodities (such as base metals) and related derivatives Commeodity
exposures are subject to periods of high price volatlity as a result of changes in supply and demand
These changes can be caused by physical production, transportation and storage 1ssues, or geopolitical
and other events that affect the available supply and level of demand for these commodities

The Group, as part of the Morgan Stanley Group’s global market nsk management framework manages
its trading positions by employing a variety of nisk mitigation strategies These strategies include
diversification of risk exposures and hedgimmg Hedging activities consist of the purchase or sale of
positions n related securities and financial mstruments, imcluding a vanety of derivative products (e g,
futures, forwards, swaps and options) The Group manages the market risk associated with its trading
activities on a Group basis, on a trading diviston level and on an individual product basis The Group
manages and momtors 1ts market risk exposures 1n such a way as to maintain a portfolio that the Group
believes s well-diversified in the aggregate with respect to market risk factors and that reflects the
aggregate risk tolerance of key entities within the Group as established by the Group’s key management
personnel
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market risk (continued}

Aggregate market risk limuts have been approved for the key entities within the Group and major trading
dwvisions globally (equity and fixed income, which includes interest rate products, credit products, foreign
exchange and commodities) as well as for the Morgan Stanley Group Additional market risk hmits are
assigned to trading desks and, as appropriate, products and regions Trading division risk managers, desk
rsk managers, traders and the market rnisk department monitor market risk measures aganst limits 1n
accordance with policies set by semor management

The market risk department independently reviews the Group’s trading portfolios on a regular basis from
a market risk perspective utilising VaR and other quantitative and qualitative nisk measures and analyses
The Group’s trading businesses and the market risk department also use, as appropriate, measures such as
sensitivety to changes in interest rates, prices, imphed volatilities and time decay to montor and report
market risk exposures Net exposure, defined as the potential loss to the Group over a period of time 1n
the event of default of a referenced asset, assuming zero recovery, 1s one key measure the Group employs
to standardise the aggregation of market risk exposures across cash and derivative products  Siress
testing, which measures the impact on the value of existing portfolios of specified changes 1n market
factors for certain products, 1s performed periodically and 1s reviewed by trading division risk managers,
desk risk managers and the market risk department The market risk department also conducts scenario
analysis, which estimates the revenue sensitivity of key entities within the Group to a set of specific,
predefined market and geopolitical events

VaR

The Group uses the statistical technique known as VaR as one of the tools used to measure, monitor and
review the market risk exposures of 1ts trading portfolios The market risk department calculates and
distributes daily VaR-based risk measures to various levels of management

VaR methodology, assumptions and limitations

The Group estimates VaR using a model based on historical simulation for major market risk factors and
Monte Carlo simulation for name-specific risk in certan equity and fixed income exposures Historical
stmulation 1nvolves constructing a distribution of hypothetical daily changes 1n the value of trading
portfolios based on two sets of inputs historical observation of daily changes in key market indices or
other market factors (“*market nisk factors™), and information on the current sensitivity of the portfolhio
values to these market risk factor changes The Group’s VaR model uses approximately four years of
historical data to characterise potential changes in market risk factors The Group’s 95%/one-day VaR
corresponds to the unrealised loss in portfolio value that, based on historically observed market risk factor
movements, would have been exceeded with a frequency of 5%, or five times 1n every 100 trading days,
if the portfolio were held constant for one day

The Group’s VaR model generally takes into account linear and non-linear exposures to price risk and
interest rate risk, and linear exposures to implied volatility nisks Market risks that are incorporated tn the
VaR model include equity and commodity prices, interest rates, foreign exchange rates and associated
imphed volatilittes As a supplement to the use of historical simulation for major market risk factors, the
Group’s VaR model uses Monte Carlo simulation to capture name-specific risk 1n equities and credit
products (1 e corporate bonds and credit derivatives)

The Group’s VaR models evolve over time n response to changes in the composition of trading
portfolios and to improvements in modelling techniques and systems capabiliies The Group 1s
committed to continuous review and enhancement of VaR methodologies and assumptions n order to
capture evolving risks associated with changes in market structure and dynamics As part of regular
process improvement, additional systematic and name-specific risk factors may be added to improve the
VaR model’s ability to more accurately estimate risks to specific asset classes or indusiry sectors
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market risk (continned)

Among their benefits, VaR models permit estimation of a portfolhio’s aggregate market risk exposure,
incorporating a range of varied market nisks, reflect risk reductton due to portfolio diversification or
hedging activities, and can cover a wide range of portfolio assets However, VaR risk measures should be
mterpreted carefully in hght of the methodology’s limitations, which include the following past changes
in market risk factors may not always yield accurate predictions of the distributions and correlations of
future market movements, changes 1n portfolio value 1n response to market movements (especially for
complex derivative portfolios) may differ from the responses calculated by a VaR model, VaR using a
one-day time horizon may not fully capture the market risk of positions that cannot be hiquidated or
hedged within one day, the historical market nisk factor data used for VaR estimation may provide only
Iimited nsight into losses that could be incurred under market conditions that are unusual relative to the
hsstorical period used in estimating the VaR, and published VaR results reflect past trading positions
while future risk depends on future positions The Group 1s aware of these and other limitations and,
therefore, uses VaR as only one component 1n 1its risk management oversight process As explained
above, this process also incorporates stress testing and scenario analyses and extensive risk monitoring,
analysss, and control at the trading desk, division, entity and group levels

VaR for the year ended 31 December 2009

The table below presents the Group’s Trading, Non-trading and Aggregate VaR for each of the Group’s
primary market risk exposures at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2008, incorporating substantially
all financial instruments generating market risk that are managed by the Group’s trading businesses This
measure of VaR incorporates most of the Group’s trading-related market nisks However, a small
proportion of trading positions generating market risk 1s not inctuded in VaR, and the modeliing of the
risk characteristics of some positions relies upon approximations that, under certain circumstances, could
produce different VaR results from those produced using more precise measures  Also, the non-trading
VaR excludes the Group’s own credit risk generated through counterparty trades and through primary
1ssuance

Since the VaR statistics reported below are estimates based on historical position and market data, VaR
should not be viewed as predictive of the Group’s future revenues or financial performance or of its
ability to momitor and manage nsk There can be no assurance that the Group’s actual losses on a
particular day will not exceed the VaR amounts indicated below or that such losses will not occur more
than five times i 100 trading days VaR does not predict the magmtude of losses which, should they
occur, may be significantly greater than the VaR amount
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Market risk (continued)

The table below presents 95%/one day VaR for each of the Group’s primary market risk categories and
on an aggregate basis as of December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008

95% Total VaR

2009

95% one-day VaR

2008

primary market risk Aggregate Trading Non-Trading Aggregate Trading Non-Trading
category Smullions  $millions $millions $millions  $mulhons $Smullions
Interest rate and credit 47 38 18 28 28 17
spread

Equity price 12 12 1 15 14 2
Foreign exchange rate 8 7 2 6 5 3
Commodity price 3 3 - 1 1 -
Subtotal 70 60 21 50 48 22
Less diversification 17 16 3 20 21 5
benefit (1)

Total VaR 53 44 18 30 27 17

(1) Diversification benefit equals the difference between Total VaR and the sum of the VaRs for the four
nisk categories This benefit arises because the simulated one-day losses for each of the four primary
market risk categories occur on different days, similar diversification benefits also are taken into account
within each category

The Group’s Trading VaR at 31 December 2009 was $44 million compared with $27 mllion at
31 December 2008 The increase in trading VaR 1s primanly due to mcreased interest rate and credit
spread VaR.

The Group views average trading VaR over the fiscal year as more representative of trends 1n the business
than VaR at any single point in time The table below, which presents the high, low and average
95%/one-day trading VaR during the year to 31 December 2009, represents substantially all of the
Group’s trading acuvitnes Certain market nisks included in the aggregate VaR discussed above are
excluded from these measures

95% One-day high/low/average 2009 2008

Trading VaR

primary market rnsk category High Low Average High Low Average
$millions $mullons  $rmuilions  $mullions  $mulhons  $millions

Interest rate and credit spread 61 27 37 37 18 26

Equity price 22 10 14 48 9 24

Foreign exchange rate 19 3 9 20 3 9

Commodity price 4 | 2 3 1 2

Trading VaR 72 26 40 58 26 38

Average Trading VaR for 2009 was $40 million, $2 million higher than the average trading VaR for the
13 month period 1o 31 December 2008, driven by an increase 1n interest rate and credit spread VaR,
partially offset by reduced average equity VaR
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market Risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s VaR excludes certain funding habilities and money market transactions As at 31 December
2009, the net notional amount of such funding Liabilities and money market activities was approximately
31 2 bilhon, compared to $6 7 bilhon as at 31 December 2008 The application of a parallel shift in
interest rates of 50 basis potnts 1ncrease or decrease to these positions would result 1n a net gain or loss of
approximately $5 5 mllion, compared to $6 7 mullion as at 31 December 2008

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency exposure arising from its investments n branches and subsidiaries where
those 1nvestments operate 1n currencies other than US dollars The majority of this foreign currency risk
has been hedged by other members of the Morgan Stanley Group, primanly Morgan Stanley, by utilising
both forward foreign currency exchange coniracts and non-US dollar denominated debt

The analysis below details this foreign currency exposure for the Group, by foreign currency, and
calculates the impact on total comprehensive income of a reasonably possible parallel shift of the foreign
currency against the US dollar, with all other variables held constant This analysis does not take nto
account the etfect of any foreign currency hedges held by other members of the Morgan Stanley Group

Foreign currency 2009 Parallel Sensitivity 2008 Parallel Sensitivity
exposure $mullions shift %  $millions $millions  shift % $millions
Austrahian Dollar (5) 27% ] 4 27% 1
Euro 394 5% 20 (409) 5% 20
British Pound 120 29% 35 50 29% 15
New Taiwan Dollar 92 3% 3 100 3% 3
New Zealand Dollar 2 24% - 1 24% -
Singapore Doilar 3 2% - 8 2% -
South Korean Won 138 42% 58 211 42% 89
Swedish Krona 14 23% 3 13 23% 3
758 (30)

The parallel shift has been calculated based on the percentage change n the respective foreign currency

rates against US dotlars in the period from | December 2007 to 31 December 2008 or 1n the period from
1 lanuary 2009 to 31 December 2009, using whichever produces the greater percentage change for each
currency

FINANCIAL ASSETS ACCEPTED AS COLLATERAL

The Group accepts financial assets as collateral which, dependent on the terms of the arrangement, the
Group 15 allowed to sell or repledge The majonty of the financial assets accepted as collateral are
recerved as part of reverse repurchase agreements or securities borrowing and are mostly conducted under
standard documentatton used by financial market participants

The fair value of collateral accepted under such arrangements as at 31 December 2009 was $162,214
million (2008 $121,385 million) Of this amount $134,615 million (2008 $116,892 milhion) has been
sold or repledged to third parties 1in connection with financing activities, or 1o comply with commitments
under short sale transactions
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29.

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS, INCLUDING PLEDGES OF COLLATERAL

In the ordnary course of business, the Group enters into various transactions that result 1n the transfer of
financial assets to third parties, which for accounting purposes may not give rise to full derecogmtion of
the financial asset

The following table presents those financtal assets which have been sold or otherwise transferred, but
which for accounting purposes do not qualify for derecognition and continue to be recogmised 1n the
consolidated statement of financial position

2009 2008

$millions $millions

Government debt securities 9,958 10,706
Corporate equities 42,108 32,318
Corporate and other debt 10,107 8,414
62,173 51,438

The majority of financial assets that do not qualify for derecognition arise from repurchase agreements
and securities lending arrangements Under these types of transactions the Group generally retains
substantially all nsks and rewards of the transferred assets including credit nisk, settlement risk, country
risk and market risk

Other financial assets transferred that continue to be recogmised for accounting purposes include pledges
of securities as collateral for open derivative transactions, as well as certain sales of securities with related
transactions, such as derivatives, that result in the Group either retasning substantially all the risks and
rewards of the financial assets transferred, or not retaiming substantially all the risks and rewards but
retaining control of those financial assets

These transactions are mostly conducted under standard agreements used by financial market parucipants
and are undertaken with counterparties subject to the Group’s normal credit risk control processes The
resulting credit exposures are controlled by dailly monitoring and collateraltsation of the positions The
carrying amount of the associated habilities related to financial assets transferred that continue to be
recognised approximate the carrying amount of those transferred assets

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

Improving disclosures about Financial Instruments (Amendment to IFRS 7) was adopted during the year
The Group has taken advantage of the exemption in paragraph 44G of IFRS7, to not provide comparative
disclosures for the changes implemented by these amendments

a Fair value hierarchy

Financral 1nstruments recognised at fair value are broken down for disclosure purposes into a three level
fair value hierarchy based on the observability of inputs as follows

*  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) — Valuations
based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or habilities that the Morgan Stanley
Group has the ability to access Valuauon adjustments and block discounts are not applied to Level |
mstruments Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly available in an
active market, valuations of these products does not entail a sigmficant degree of judgment

e  Valuation techmques using observable inputs (Level 2) — Valuations based on one or more quoted
prices wn markets that are not active or for which all sigmficant inputs are observable, either directly
or mdirectly

*  Valuation techniques with significant non-observable inputs (Level 3) — Valuations based on nputs
that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement

The Group’s valuation approach and fair value hierarchy categorisation for certam significant classes of
financial instruments recognised at fair value 15 as follows
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

Fair value lerarchy (continued}

Government debt securities

The fair value of sovereign government obhgations 15 generally based on quoted prices (n active markets
When quoted prices are not available, fair value 1s determined based on a valuation model that has as
nputs 1nterest rate yield curves, cross-currency basis index spreads, and country credit spreads for
structures smmilar to the bond 1n terms of 1ssuer, maturity and semonty These bonds are generally
categonsed 1n Levels | or 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Corporate and other debt

US State and Municipal Securities  The fair value of state and mumcipal secunities 1s estimated using
recently executed transactions, market price quotations and pricing models that factor in, where
applicable, interest rates, bond or credit default swap spreads and volatility These bonds are
generally cateporised 1n Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities (“RMBS™), Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities
(“CMBS"), and other Asset-Backed Securities (“ABS”) RMBS, CMBS and other ABS may be
valued based on external price or spread data When position-specific external price data are not
observable, the valuation 15 based on prices of comparable bonds Valuation levels of RMBS and
CMBS indices are used as an additional data point for benchmarking purposes or to price outright
index positions

Fair value for retained mterests i securitised financial assets (in the form of one or more tranches of
the securitisation} 1s determmned using observable prices or, 1n cases where observable prices are not
available for certain retained interests, the fair value 15 estimated based on the present value of
expected future cash flows using the best estimate of the key assumptions, including forecasted credut
losses, prepayment rates, forward yield curves and discount rates commensurate with the risks
involved

RMBS, CMBS and other ABS, including retained interests 1n these securitised financial assets, are
categonised 1n Level 3 if external prices or spread mputs are unobservable or if the comparability
assessment 1nvolves significant subjectivity related to property type differences, cash flows,
performance and other inputs, otherwise, they are categorised 1n Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Corporate Bonds  The farr value of corporate bonds 15 estimated using recently executed
transactions, market price quotations (where observable), bond spreads or credit default swap spreads
adjusted for any basis difference between cash and derivative instruments The spread data used are
for the same maturity as the bond If the spread data does not reference the issuer, then data that
reference a comparable 1ssuer 15 used When observable price quotations are not available, fair value
15 determined based on cash flow models with yield curves, bond or single name credit default swap
spreads and recovery rates based on collateral values as significant inputs  Corporate bonds are
generally categorised in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, 1n mnstances where significant inputs are
unobservable, they are categorised in Level 3 of the hierarchy

Collateralised Debt Obligations (“CDOs™) The Group holds CDOs where the collateral primanly 1s
synthetic and references either a basket credit default swap or CDO-squared The correlation input
between reference credits within the collateral 1s uncbservable and 15 benchmarked to standardized
proxy baskets for which correlation data are available The other model inputs such as credit spreads,
interest rates and recovery rates are observable CDOs are categorised in Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy when the correlation nput 15 msignificant In nstances where the correlation input 1s
deemed to be sigmficant, these instruments are categerised 1n Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)
a Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Corporate and other debt (continued)

s Corporate Leans and other lending commitments The fair value of corporate loans is esimated
using recently executed transactions, market prices quotations (where observable) and market
observable loan credit default swap spread levels adjusted for any basis difference between cash and
derivative instruments, along with proprietary valuation models and default recovery analysis where
such transactions and quotations are unobservable The fair value of contingent corporate loan
commitments 15 eshmated by using executed transactions on comparable loans and the anticipated
market price based on pricing indications from syndicate banks and customers The valuation of
these commutments also takes into account certamn fee mcome  Corporate loans and [foan
commitments are generally categonsed tm Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, m instances where
significant inputs are unobservable they are categorised 1n Level 3 of the hierarchy

Corporate equities and available-for-sale financal assets

Exchange traded equity securities are generally valued based on quoted prices from the exchange To the
extent these secunties are actively traded, valuation adjustments are not appled and they are categorised
in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy Otherwise, to the extent not actively traded, these securities are
categonised 1n Level 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy Corporate equity securtties are classified as either
held for trading or available-for-sale financial assets in line with the Group’s accounting policies
described 1n Note 3

Dervatives

Listed derivatives that are acuvely traded are valued based on quoted prices from the exchange and are
categorised in Level | of the fair value hierarchy Listed derivatives that are not actively traded are
valued using the same approaches as those applied to OTC dertvatives, they are generally categonised n
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

OTC denvative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts related to interest rates, foreign
currencies, credit standing of reference entities, equity prices or commodity prices

Depending on the product and the terms of the transaction, the fair value of OTC financial instruments
can be modelled using a series of techmiques, including closed-form analytic formulae such as the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, simulation models or a combination thereof Many pricing models do not
entail matenial subjectivity because the methodologies employed do not necessitate significant judgement,
and the pricing inputs are observed from actively quoted markets In the case of more established
derivative products, the pricing models used by the Group are widely accepted by the financial services
industry A substantial majonity of OTC derivative products valued by the Group using pricing models
are categonised within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Other derivative products, typically the newest and most complex products, or products that have become
iliquid, require more judgment 1n the implementauon of the valuation techmque applied due to the
complexity of the valuation assumptions and the reduced observability of inputs This includes derwvative
interests 1n certain mortgage-related collateralised debt obligation (“CDO™) securities, mortgage-related
credit default swaps, basket credit default swaps and CDO-squared positions where direct trading activity
or quotes are unobservable These instruments nvolve sigmficant unobservable mputs and are categonsed
in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

Derivative interests 1n mortgage-related CDOs, for which observability of external price data 1s extremely
limited, are valued based on an evaluation of the market for simular positions as indicated by primary and
secondary market actuvity in the cash CDO and synthetic CDO markets Each position 1s evaluated
independently taking into consideration the underlying collateral performance and pricing, behaviour of
the tranche under various cumulative loss and prepayment scenarios, deal structures (e g , non-amortising
reference obligations, call features) and hquidity While these factors may be supported by historical and
actual external observations, the determination of their value as 1t relates to specific posiions nevertheless
requires significant judgment and these nterests are generally included in Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)
a Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Derwvatives (continued)

Mortgage-related credit default swaps are valued based on data from comparable credit instruments in the
cash market and trades 1n comparable swaps as benchmarks, as prices and spreads for the specific credits
subject to valuation tend to be of limited observability These swaps are generally included in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy

For basket credit default swaps and CDO-squared positions, the correlation between reference credits 15
often a significant input into the pricing model, in addibon to several other more observable mnputs such
as credit spread, interest and recovery rates As the correlation input 15 unobservable for each specific
swap, 1t 18 benchmarked to standardised proxy baskets for which external data are available

The Group trades various derivative structures with commodity underlyings Depending on the type of
structure, the model inputs generally include mterest rate yield curves, commodity underlier spread
curves, volatihty of the underlying commodities and, 1n some cases, the correlation between these inputs
The fair value of these products 1s estimated using executed trades and broker and consensus data to
provide values for the aforementioned inputs Where these mputs are unobservable, relationships to
observable commodies and data points, based on historic and / or implied observations, are employed as
a techmque to estimate the model input values Commodity derivatives are generally categorised in Level
2 of the fair value hierarchy, in instances where significant inputs are unobservable, they are categorised
1 Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

Investments (other than investments in other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings)

The Group’s investments include direct private equity investments and nvestments i private equity
funds, real estate funds and hedge funds Imtially, the transaction price s generally considered by the
Group as the exit price and 1s the Group’s best estimate of fair value

After imtial recogmtion, 1in determining the fair value of internally and externally managed funds, the
Group considers the net asset value of the fund provided by the fund manager to be the best estimate of
fair value For direct private investments and privately held investments within internally managed funds,
fair value after initial recognition 1s based on an assessment of each underlying investment, considering
rounds of financing third party transactions, discounted cash flow analyses and market-based information,
including comparable company transactions, trading multiples and changes in market outlook, among
other factors

Investments in private equity and real estate funds are generally categorised 1n Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy Investments in hedge funds that are redeemable at the measurement date or in the near future,
are categorised tn Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, otherwise they are categorised 1n Level 3

Structured notes and prepaid OTC dervatives designated as farr value through profit or loss

The Group 1ssues structured notes and trades prepaid OTC derivatives that have coupons or repayment
terms linked to the performance of debt or equity securities, indices, currencies or commodities  Fair
value of structured notes and prepad OTC denvatives 1s estimated using valuation models descnibed
above for the derivative and debt features of the notes These models mcorporate observable inputs
referencing identical or comparable securibies, including prices that the notes are hinked to, interest rate
yield curves, option volatility and currency rates The impact of own credit spreads 1s also ncluded based
on observed secondary bond market spreads Most structured notes and prepaid OTC denivatives are
categorised in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Fair Value Control Processes

The Group employs control processes to validate the fair value of its financial instruments, including
those derived from pricing models These control processes are designed to assure that the values used for
financial reporting are based on observable inputs wherever possible In the event that observable inputs
are not available, the control processes are designed to assure that the valuation approach utilised 1s
appropriate and consistently applied and that the assumptions are reascnable These control processes
include reviews of the pricing model’s theoretical soundness and appropriateness by Group personnel
with relevant expertise who are independent from the trading desks
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

a Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Fair Value Control Processes (continued)

Additionally, groups mdependent from the trading divisions within the financial control, market risk and
credit risk departments participate in the review and validation of the fair values generated from pricing
models, as appropriate Where a pricing model 1s used to determune fair value, recently comparable
transactions and other observable market data are considered for purposes of validating assumptions

underlying the model

Financial assets and liabilities recognised at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of the Group’s financial assets and labilities, recognised
at fair value, classified according to the fair value hierarchy described above

Financial assets classified as held for trading
- Government debt securities
- Corporate equities
- Corporate and other debt
- Derivatives

Total financial assets classified as held for trading

Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss

Available-for-sale financial assets
- Corporate equities
Total financial assets held at fair value

Financial labibities classified as held for trading
- Government debt securities
- Corporate equities
- Corporate and other debt
- Dernvatives

Total financial liabilities ciasssfied as held for trading

Financial habilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss

Total financial habilities at fair value

2009

Valuation

techniques

Valuation with

Quoted techniques significant

prices in using non-

active observable observable

market inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
$millions $millions $millions $millions
11,921 948 2 12,871
42,413 2,241 49 44,703
10 18,143 2,351 20,504
1,175 160,586 4,234 §65,995
55,519 181,918 6,636 244,073
107 389 1,411 1,907
1 - 42 43
55,627 182,307 8,089 246,023
10,585 1,274 - 11,859
14,143 1,521 3 15,667
69 6,403 4 6,476
1,352 162,305 5,896 169,553
26,149 171,503 5,903 203,555
2,785 4,202 892 7,879
28,934 175,705 6,795 211,434
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29, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

a. Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Financial assets and llabithties recognised at fair value (continued)

Financial assets classified as held for trading
- Government debt securities
- Corporate equities
- Corporate and other debt
- Derivatives

Total financial assets classified as held for trading

Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss

Available-for-sale financial assets

- Corporate equities
Total financial assets held at fair value

Financia! habilities classified as held for trading
- Government debt securities
- Corporate equities
- Corporate and other debt
- Derivatives

Total financial habilities classified as held for trading

Financtal liabiittes designated at fair value through
profit or loss

Total financial ltabihities at fair value

2008

Valuation

techniques

Valuation with

Quoted techniques significant

prices in using non-

active observable observable

market inputs inputs
{Level 1} (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
$nullions $millions $mulhions $millions
8,716 2,835 2 14,553
36,749 6,220 460 43,429
34 12,887 2,302 15,223
1,091 203,775 10,586 215,452
46,590 225717 13,350 285,657
190 74 1,131 1,395
. - 87 87
46,780 225,791 14,568 287,139
3,355 2,051 - 5,406
10,508 1,458 24 11,990
17 909 88 1,014
932 206,949 13,913 221,794
14,812 211,367 14,025 240,204
1,424 3,939 515 5,878
16,236 215,306 14,540 246,082

60




MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL ple
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2009

29, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)
b. Changes in Level 3 assets and liabihties measured at fair value

The following table presents the changes in the fair value of the Group’s Level 3 financial assets and
financial Liabtlities for the year ended 31 December 2009

2009 Unrealised
gains or
Total gams or (losses) for
Total gains losses z Net level 3 assets /
Balance or losses  recogmsed in g g £ transfersin  Balance at Labihities
at | recognised other g ] g and / or out 31 outstanding as
January 1o profit or comprehensive e R g g of Level 3  December at 31 December
2009 loss imcome £ & k] & ) 2009 2009 (2)
$nullions  $millions $mullions $nmullions $rlhons$mllions $milhons  $millions  $millions $millions
Financial assets
held for trading
- Government debt 2 - - - - - - - 2 -
securities
- Corporate equities 460 (63) - 63 (13D - - (280) 49 (34)
- Corporate and 2,302 236 - 9338 (704) - - (421) 2,351 233
other debt
Financial assets 1,131 643 - 3 - - (283) (83) 1,411 643
designated at fair
value through
profit or loss
Available-for-sale
financial assets
- Corporate equities 87 - (7 - (38) - - - 42 -
Financial habihues
held for trading
- Government debt - - - - - - - - - -
securities
- Corporate equities 24) - - - (10) - 21 10 {(3) -
- Corporate and (88) 6 - - (18) - 77 19 {4 24)
other debt
- Net denivative (3,327 1,548 - - - - 0 147 (1,662) 1,042
contracts {3)
Financial habilities (515) 30 - - - (330) 215 (242) (892) 30
designated at fair
value through
profit or loss
28 2,400 7) 1 004 (901) (380 - {850} 1,294 1,890

(1) For financial assets and financial liabilines that were transferred mnio and out of Level 3 during the year, gains or (losses) are presented as 1f
the assets or habiliwes had been transferred nto or out of Level 3 as at the beginning of the year

(2) Amounts represent unrealized gans or (losses) for the year ended 31 December 2009 related to assets and habilities still outstanding at 31
December 2009

(3) Net denvative contracts represent Financial assets classified as held for trading — denvative contracts net of Financial habilities classified as
held for trading — denvative contracts

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the total amount of the change n farr value of financial
instruments held by the Group estimated using a valuation technigue that includes unobservable market
data was a net loss of $2,861 million
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)
b. Changes in Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)

As disclosed 1n note 35 the Morgan Stanley Group operates a number of intra-group policies to ensure
that, where possible, revenues and related costs are matched Where the trading positions included in the
above gams or losses are risk managed using financial instruments across a number of Morgan Stanley
Group entities, these policies potentially result 1n the recogmtion of offsetting gains or losses in the
Group

During the year, the Group reclassified approximately $95 million of derivative contracts and structured
notes from Level 2 to Level 3 The reclassifications primanly related to exotic equity linked notes and
were due to certain sigmficant inputs for the far value measurement becoming unobservable

During the year, the Group reciassified approximately $755 million of derivative contracts and corporate
and other debt from Level 3 to Level 2 The reclassifications primanly related to debt linked bonds and
interests 1n hedge funds and were due to an increase 1n market price quotations for these or comparable
instruments, such that observable inputs were utilised for the fair value measurement

c. Significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy
During the year, there were no significant reclassifications between Level 1 and Level 2
d. Sensitivity of fair values to changing significant assumptions to reasonably pessible alternatives

All financial 1nstruments are valued 1n accordance with the techniques outlined i the fair value hierarchy
disclosure above Some of these techmiques, mncluthng those used to value nstruments categorised
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, are dependent on unobservable parameters and the fair value for these
financial instruments has been determined using parameters appropriate for the valuatton methodology
based on prevailing market evidence It 1s recognised that the unobservable parameters could have a
range of reasonably possible alternative values

In estmating the change 1n fair value, the unobservable parameters were varied to the extremes of the
ranges of reasonably possible alternatives using statistical techniques, such as dispersion i comparable
observable external inputs for similar asset classes, historic data or judgment if a statistical techmque 15
not appropriate Where a financial instrument has more than one unobservable parameter, the sensitivity
analysis reflects the greatest increase or decrease to fair value by varying the assumptions individually It
15 unlikely that all unobservable parameters would concurrently be at the extreme range of possible
alternative assumptions and therefore the sensitivity shown below 1s likely to be greater than the actual
uncertainty relating to the financial instruments
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

d. Sensitivity of fair values to changing significant assumptions to reasonably possible alternatives
(continued)

The following table presents the sensitivity of the fair value of Level 3 financial assets and financial
liabihties as at 31 December 2009 to reasonably possible alternative assumptions

EiTect of reasonably possible
alternative assumptions

2009
Increase in Decrease in
Fair Value fair value fair value
$millions $mullions $millions
Financial assets classified as held
for rading
- Govemment debt securities 2 - -
- Corporate equities 49 | @)
- Corporate and other debt 2,351 141 (123)
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss
- Prepaid OTC contracts 1,411 8 &)
Available-for-sale financial assels
- Corporate equities 42 - -
Financial habilities classified as
held for trading
- Government debt securities - - -
- Corporate equities (3) - -
- Corporate and other debt (@) 3 (6)
- Net denivatives contracts'’ (1,602) 149 (154)
Financial hablities designated at
fair value through profit or loss
- Prepard OTC coniracts (188) 1 (N
- Note 1ssuances 61) 1 (n
- Other (643) 30 (30)

(1) Net denvative contracts represent Financial assets classified as held for trading — denvative contracts net of Financial liabihties
classified as held for trading — dervative contracts

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the potential impact of using reasonably possible alternative
assumptions for the valuation techmques including unobservable market data was quantified as
approximately $310 million, which could be either positive or negative
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29.

30.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)
e. Financial instruments valued using unobservable market data

The amounts not recogmsed 1n the consolidated income statement relating to the difference between the
fawr value at imtial recognitton (the transaction price) and the amounts determined at 1mtial recogmtion
using valuation technques are as follows

2009 2008

$millions $millions

At the beginning of the year / penied 281 232

New transactions 42 68
Amounts recognised in the consohdated income statement during

the period {108) (19)

At the end of the year / period 215 281

The balance above predominantly relates to derivatives

The statement of financial position categories ‘Financial assets and financial habihties classified as held
for trading’, ‘Financial assets and financial habilities designated at farr value’, and °Available-for-sale
financial assets’ wiclude financial instruments whose fair value is based on valuation techmiques using
unobservable market data

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NOT MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

For all financial assets and financial l:abilities not recogmsed at fair value, the carrying amount 1§
considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short term nature of these financial
assets and habilittes, except for the following

2009 Carrying Unrecognised
value Fair value gain / (loss)
$millions $millions $millions

Financial assets and liabilities
Subordinated loans 8,550 6,874 1,676
Preference shares 786 677 109
Termed reverse repurchase agreements 75,352 75,354 2
Termed repurchase agreements 59,262 59,266 4)
2008 Carrying Fair value Unrecognised
value $millions gain / (loss)
$milhions $millions

Financial assets and liabilities
Subordinated loans 12,950 6,793 6,157
Preference shares 786 399 387
Termed reverse repurchase agreements 37.864 37,869 5
Termed repurchase agreements 16,665 16,670 (5)

The fair value for subordinated loans has been determined based on the assumption that alk subordinated
loans are held to the latest repayment date, although the amounts outstanding are repayable at any time at
the Group's option, subject to prior consent from the FSA
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31,

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Morgan Stanley Group manages its capital on a global basis with consideration for each individual
legal entity The capital managed by the Morgan Stanley Group broadly includes ordinary share caputal,
preference share capital, subordinated loans and reserves

The Morgan Stanley Group also uses an economic capital framework The economic capital framework
esumates the amount of equity capital required to support the businesses over a wide range of market
environments while simultaneously satisfying regulatory, rating agency and mvestor requirements The
framework will evolve over time in response to changes n the business and regulatory environment and
to incorporate enhancements in modelling techmques Economic capital 1s based on regulatory capital
usage plus additional capital for stress losses

The Morgan Stanley Group’s objectives when managing global capital are

e to comply with the capital requirements of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System of
the United States, and

* to mummise capital within a legal entity whilst safeguarding that entity’s ability to continue as a
going concern, 5o that 1t can continue to provide returns for the Morgan Stanley Group

The Morgan Stanley Group sets the amount of capital for each entity 1n proportion to its nisk and 1n line
with regulatory requirements

The Group actively manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to t in the light of changing
economic condmons and the nsk characteristics of the underlying assets and habihties In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid, return capital
to shareholders, 1ssue new shares, 1ssue or repay subordinated debt or sell assets to reduce debt

The Group 1s regulated by the Financial Services Authonty (“FSA”} and as such 1s subject to mimnmimum
capital requirements The Group’s capital 15 momtored on an ongoing basis to ensure comphance with
the rules within the FSA’s General Prudential Sourcebook At a mimimum, the Group must ensure that
Capital Resources (share capital, subordinated debt, audited profit and loss and ehgible reserves) are
greater than the Capital Resource Requirement covering credit, market and operational risk The Group’s
capital exceeded all of its regulatory capital requiremnents during the period

The Group considers the below to be 1ts managed capital

2009 2008

$millions $millions

Ordimnary share capital 3,028 3,028
Preference share capatal 50 1,300
Subordinated loans 8,550 12,950
Preference shares classified as debt instruments 786 786
Reserves 3,665 3,743
16,079 21,807

During 2009, the Group has continued to review and actively manage 1ts capital position As part of this
capital management, the Group has repaid $4,.400 million of intercompany subordinated debt and
repurchased $1,250 milion of the Group’s issued class C non-redeemable non-cumulative preference
share capital
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32,

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

As described 1n note 35, the Group utilises staff employed by other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings
and incurs management charges in respect of these employee services These management charges
include the costs of equity-based compensation provided to these employees

Equity-based compensation plans provided to employees of the Group are detailed below
Deferred stock awards

Morgan Stanley has made deferred stock awards pursuant to equity-based compensation plans The plans
provide for the deferral of a portion of certain key employees’ discretionary compensation with awards
made in the form of restricted common stock or i the form of a night to receive unrestricted shares of
common stock in the future (“restricted stock units™) Awards under these plans are generally subject to a
sole vesting condition of service over time and to restrictions on sale, transfer or assignment until the end
of a specified peniod, generally two to three years from date of grant  All or a portion of an award may be
cancelled 1f employment 1s termwnated before the end of the relevant vesting period, all or a portion of a
vested award also may be cancelled in certain himited situations, including termmation for cause duning
the relevant restriction period

During the year, Morgan Stanley granted 102,226 umts of restricted common stock to employees of the
Group with a weighted average fair value per umit of $20 87 (2008 783.678 umts, weighted average fair
value $38 31 per umt) based on the market value of Morgan Stanley shares at grant date The thirteen
month reporting period 1n 2008 includes unets of restricted stock granted for two fiscal year end awards
Units granted m respect of employees’ 2009 discretionary compensation have been granted n January
2010

Stock option awards

Morgan Stanley has also made stock option awards in the form of stock options on Morgan Stanley’s
common stock The stock options generally have an exercise price of not less than the fair value of
Morgan Staniey’s common stock on the date of grant and generally become exercisable over a three year
period, expiring ten years from the date of grant, subject 10 accelerated expiration upon termination of
employment Stock option awards have vesting, restriction and cancellation provisions that are similar to
those 1n deferred stock awards
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32, SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Stock option awards (continued)

The following table shows activity relating to the Morgan Stanley Group’s stock option awards for

employees of the Group

Options cutstanding at | January 2009 and

I December 2007

Granted during the year / period
Forfeited during the year / period
Exercised during the year / peniod
Expired during the year / period

Options outstanding at 31 December

Options exercisable at 31 December

2009 2008
Number Weighted Number Weighted
of average of average
options exercise options exercise
‘000s price ‘000s price
$ $
478 5078 539 48 72
1 6673 6 6673
- - 37 26 20
152 44 95 18 44 65
325 5347 478 5081
276 5110 338 44 80

No stock options were exercised during the year The weighted average share price on exercise i 2008

was $49 85

The following table presents information relating to the stock options outstanding

Range of
exercise prices

$3000-3$3999
34000 - $49 99
$50 00 - %5999
$60 00 - $69 99
Total

2009 2008
Weighted Weighted

average Average average Average
Number exercise remaining Number exercise remaining
of options price life in of options price life in
‘000s $ years “000s $ years
66 3625 29 103 3478 30
108 47 43 33 184 46 69 46
14 5433 7 53 5542 22
137 66 45 46 138 66 45 75
325 53 47 36 478 5078 48
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33.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined contribution plans

The Group operates several Morgan Stanley defined contribution plans which require contributions made
to the plans to be held n trust, separate from the assets of the Group

The defined contribution plans are as follows
Morgan Stanley Flexible Company Penston Plan (Amsterdam)
Morgan Stanley & Co International plc, (Greece Branch) Group Insurance Policy
MSII Offshore Retirement Benefit Plan IV, Dubai Section
Morgan Stanley As:a Limited Retirement Benefit Plan

The defined contribution pension charge recogmsed within ‘Staff costs® 1n ‘Other expense’ in the
consolidated mcome statement was $911,453 for the year (2008 $980,338) of which $3,843 was accrued
at 31 December 2009 (2008 $57,988) Contributions to the Morgan Stanley & Co International plc,
(Greece Branch) Group Insurance Policy ceased during the year due to the winding down of activity n
the branch

Defined benefit plans

The Group also operates several Morgan Stanley defined benefit plans, which provide pension benefiis
that a member 15 enutled to receive based on factors such as years of service and salary The Group’s
policy 1s to fund at least the amounts sufficient to meet mimimum funding requirements under applicable
employee benefit and tax regulations

The defined benefits plans are as follows
Morgan Stanley & Co International plc Paris Branch IFC (Indemmites de Fin de Carriere)
Morgan Stanley France (SAS) Leaving Indemmity Plan {Indemnites de Fin de Carriere)
Morgan Stanley & Co International plc Seoul Branch Severance Pay Plan
Morgan Stanley & Co International plc (Athens Branch) Retirement Indemnaty
Morgan Stanley Asia (Taiwan) Limited Retirement Scheme
Morgan Stanley Dubai End of Service Gratuity

Expense recognised in the consolidated income statement

The amounts recogmsed n ‘Staff costs’, within ‘Other expense’, 1n the consolidated income statement 1n
respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows

2009 2008

$millions $millions

Current service cost 2 2
Total charge 2 2

Actuanal gains and losses have been reported n other comprehensive imcome

The cumulative amount of actuarial gamns and losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income 15 $2 mullton loss (2008 $1 mullion gam)
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Retirement benefit obligation

The following table provides a reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
fair value of plan assets mcluded in the consolidated statement of financial position, as well as a surnmary
of the funded status of the plans

2009 2008
$millions $millions
Retirement benefit hability

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation (6) (4)
Fair value of plan assets 3 3
(3) (h
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation (D] (N

Retirement benefit Liability recogmsed 1n the consohdated
statement of financial position (4) (2)

Contnibutions for the year to the defined benefit plan totalled $2 mullion (2008 $2 rmullion), of which $nil
was accrued at 31 December 2009 (2008 $mil) The Group expects to contribute $1 million (2008 $1
million) m the next financial year, based upon the current funded status, and the expected return
assumptions for the next financial year

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows

2009 2008
$millions $millions
Reconciliation of defined benefit obligations
Benefit obligations at beginming of the period 5 7
Current service cost 2 2
Interest cost - -
Actuanial loss / (gain) 2 e))
Benefits paid 2) e}
Foreign exchange rate changes - 2)
Benefit obhgations at end of the period 7 5
Changes 1n the fair value of plan assets were as follows
2009 2008
$millions $millions
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the period 3 3
Employer contributions 2 2
Benefits paid 2) (N
Foreign exchange rate changes - 4D
Fair value of plan assets at end of the period 3 3

Actual return on fund assets - -
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The major categories of the total plan assets are as follows

Fair value of assets

2009 2008
$millions $millions
Cash 3 3
2009 2008

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
Rate at the beginning of the year used for income 0%-2 25% 3 00%-5 50%
Rate at the end of the year 2 50%-3 50% 0%-2 25%

The expected long-term rate of return on assets represents the Group’s best esumate of the long-term
return on the plan assets and generally was estimated by computing a weighted average return of the
underlying long-term expected returns on the different asset classes, based on the target asset allocations
For plans where there 1s no established target asset allocation, actual asset allocations were used The
expected long-term return on assets 1s a long-term assumption that generally 1s expected to remain the
same from one year 10 the next unless there 15 a sigmificant change 1n the target asset allocation, the fees
and expenses paid by the plan or market conditions

The Group, in consultation with 1ts mdependent investment consultants and actuaries, determined the
asset allocation targets based on its assessment of business and financial conditions, demographic and
actuanial data, funding characteristics and related risk factors Other relevant factors, including industry
practices, long-term historical and prospective capital market returns, were also considered

The Plan return objectives provide long-term measures for monitoring the mnvestment performance
agaimst growth n the pension obhigattons The overall allocation 15 expected to help protect the plan’s
funded status while generating sufficiently stable real returns (net of inflation) to help cover current and
future benefit payments

The following table presents the principal actuarial assumptions at the statement of financial position
date

2009 2008
Discount rate 2 25%- 7 05% \ 85%-7 715%
Rate of increase 1n salaries 2 50%-5 50% 2 25%-6 25%
Inflation assumption 2 00% 2 00%-5 00%

The mflation rate applied to the Pans and France schemes for the period 18 2% (2008 2%) The wnflation
rate for the Dubai scheme has been determined not to apply, for the current period (2008 5%) The
inflation assumption 1s not applicable to the remaimng schemes included 1n the disclosure

The mortahty assumptions used give the following life expectations at §5

Mortakity table

Life expectancy at age
65 for a male member

Life expectancy at
age 65 for a female

currently: member currently:
Aged 65 Aged 45 Aged 65 Aged d5
31 December 2009
Korea Korean Life Table 2006 811 176 851 836
Taiwan 2002 Taiwan Standard N/A N/A N/A N/A
Ordinary Mortality
Table
31 December 2008
Korea Korean Life Table 2006 811 776 851 836
Taiwan 2002 Tarwan Standard N/A N/A N/A N/A

Ordinary Mortality
Table
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the defined benefit obligation are as

follows

Assumption Change in assumption
Taiwan

Discount rate Increase / decrease by 0 5%
Rate of increase 1n salaries Increase / decrease by 0 5%
Korea

Discount rate Increase by 0 5%

Rate of increase n salaries
Rate of mortality

Increase by 0 5%
Increase by 1 year

Impact on scheme liabilities

. Decrease 575
[ncrease 6 34
Increase by less than 0 02%

Decrease 6 05% / increase by 6 66%
Increase 6 61% / decrease by 6 06%

The Group has used the exemption 1n paragraph 160 of IAS |9 ‘Employee benefits’ and disclosed
amounts under paragraph 120A(p) of IAS 19 below for each annual reporting period prospectively from

the date of transition to IFRS

The four year history of experience adjustments 1s as fotlows

31 December 31 December 30 November 30 November
2009 2008 2007 2007
$millions $miltions $millions $millions
Present value of defined benefit )] (&) (8) (6)
obligation
Fair value of plan assets 3 3 4 3
(Deficit) / Surplus 4 (2) 4 3
Experience adjustments on plan
habihities
Amount ( () - -
Percentage of plan liabihities (%) (12 48%) (15 85%) 031% (4 26%)
Experience adjustments on plan assets
Amount - - - -
Percentage of plan labilities (%) 222% (3 79%) (0 77%) (0 31%)

Plans operated by fellow subsidiary undertakings

Along with a number of other Morgan Stanley Group companies, the Group incurs management charges
from a fellow subsidiary undertaking, Morgan Stanley UK Limuted (“MSUK”), 1n respect of MSUK’s
employees’ services These management recharges include pension costs related to the Morgan Stanley
UK Group Pensions Plan (the “UK Plan”) The UK Plan 1s a defined contribution scheme with a closed
defined benefit section The management recharge incurred by the Group s affected by the financial
position of the UK Plan, measured tn accordance with United Kingdom accounting standards The
management recharge for the year 1a respect of the defined benefit plan recogamised in the consolidated

income statement was $9 mullion (2008 $5 muillion)
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For the purposes of IAS19, disclosure for the defined benefit section of the UK Plan as a2 whole, measured
in accordance with IAS 19, 1s presented below
Defined benefit plan expense

The amounts recognised 1n ‘Staff costs’, within ‘Other expense’, in the consolidated income statement 1n
respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows

2009 2008

$millions $millions

Expected return on plan assets (6) (n
Interest on obligation 8 9
Net debit / (credit) that would be recogmsed 2 (2)

The following table provides a reconcthation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
fair value of plan assets included 1n the consolidated statement of financial position, as well as a summary
of the funded status of the plans

2009 2008
$millions $millions

Retirement benefit liability
Defined benefit obligation (148) (131}
Fawr value of plan assets 151 £49
Adjustment for celling {3) (18)

Retirement benefit liability recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial positton - -

Contributions for the year to the defined benefit plan totalled $9 miltion (2008 $6 million), of which $mil
was accrued at 31 December 2009 (2008 $mil) The Group expects to contribute $9 milhion (2008 $8
rmillion) m the next financial year, based upon the current funded status and the expected return
assumptions for the next financial year

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation during the year were as follows

2009 2008
$millions $millions
Reconcihation of defined benefit obligations
Defined benefit obligations a1 beginming of the year /
period 131 170
Interest cost 8 9
Actuarial (gain) / loss (3) 6
Benefits paid (2) (n
Foreign exchange rate changes 14 (53)
Benefit obligations at end of year / period 148 131
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Changes 1n the fair value of plan assets were as follows

2009 2008
$millions $millions
Reconcihation of fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year /
period 149 195
Expected return on plan assets 6 i1
Actuanial loss (27) (2)
Employer contributions 9 6
Benefits paid (2) (n
Foreign exchange rate changes 16 {60)
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year / period 151 149
Actual return on fund assets 2D 9

The major categories of the total plan assets are as follows

Fair value of assets

2009 2008

$millions $millions

Equity securities 2 -
Fixed income securities 149 149
151 149

The following table presents the principal actuarial assumptions at the date of the statement of financial

position
2009

Pre-retirement Discount rate 570%
Post-retirement Discount rate 4 50%
Rate of increase 1n defined benefit pensions in
deferment 3 80%
Inflation assumption 3 80%
Expected rate of return on plan assets

- Equuty securifies 7 00%

- Fixed income securihes 4 40%

2008
5 80%
3 90%

290%
2 90%

3 80%
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The mortality assumptions used give the following life expectantions at 65

Life expectancy at age
65 for a male member

Aged 65
31 December 2009
UK 881
31 December 2008
UK 879

Life expectancy at
age 65 for a female

currently: member currently:
Aged 40 Aged 65 Aged 40
917 881 917

916 879 917

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the defined benefit obligation are as

follows

Assumption

Discount rate

Inflation assumption

Rate of increase 1n salaries
Rate of mortality

Change in assumption
Increase by 0 5%
Increase by 0 5%

Not applicable

Increase by | year

Impact on scheme habilities
Decrease 15%

Increase 4%

Not applicable

Increase by 2%

The Group has used the exemption in paragraph 160 of 1AS 19 ‘Employee benefirs’ and disclosed
amounts under paragraph 120A(p) of IAS 19 below for each annual reporting period prospectively from

the date of transition to IFRS

The four year history of experience adjustments 1s as follows

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Surplus

Experience adjustments on plan Liabilities
Amount ($muilions)

Percentage of plan lhabilities (%)

Experience adjustments on plan assets
Amount ($millions)

2009 2008 2007 2006
$millions $millions $millions $millions
(148) {131 (170) (151

151 149 195 161

3 18 25 10

- - (6) -

0% 0% 35Hh% 0%

27 1 5 (5)

Percentage of plan assets (%)

17 86% 0 68% 2 74% (3 05%)
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as.

MORGAN STANLEY SMITH BARNEY

On 1 June 2009, Morgan Stanley and Citigroup Inc (“Citr””) consummated the previously announced
transaction to combine its Global Wealth Management Group and the businesses of Citi’s Smith Barney
in the U S, Quiter 1n the UK, and Smith Barney Australia (“Smith Barney™ The combined businesses
operate as a consolidated joint venture, Morgan Stanley Smith Barney Holdings LLC (“MSSB™)

As part of the transaction, on | June 2009, the Group’s European GWM mtroducing broker activities
were reorgamsed and transferred to MSSB The transaction occurred between entittes which were
considered under common control for accounting purposes and gave rise to recognition within equity of a
net capatal contribution of $50 million recerved from other Morgan Stanley Group companies The Group
will continue to provide certain ongoing services to support the European GWM business and will retain
an nterest 1n GWM 1n Asia In the period from 1 January 2009 to 1 June 2009, GWM contributed an $11
milhion loss to the Group’s results (13 months to 31 December 2008 $21 mullion profit)

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Parent and ultimate controlling entity

The Group’s immediate parent undertaking 1s Morgan Stanley UK Group, which 1s registered in England
and Wales Copies of 1ts accounts can be obtained from the Registrar of Compames for England and
Wales, Companies House, Crown Way, Maindy, Cardiff CF14 3UZ

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlhing entity and the largest group of which the Group 1s a
member and for which group accounts are prepared 1s Morgan Stanley Morgan Stanley 1s incorporated in
Delaware, the United States of Amenica and copies of 1its accounts can be obtawned from 25 Cabot Square,
Canary Wharf, London E14 4QA
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries

The principal subsidiary undertakings of the Group are as follows

Name of Company
Morgan Stanley
Tairwan Limited
Morgan Stanley
Mandarin Lumited
Morgan Stanley
Turnberry Limited
{formerly MSDW
Turnberry Limited)
Morgan Stanley
Silvermere Limited
Morgan Stanley Dover
Investments Limited
Morgan Stanley
Rivelino Investments
Limited

Morgan Stanley Kochi
Limited

Morgan Stanley
Longcross Limited
Morgan Stanley
Langton Limited
Morgan Stanley
Bowline Limited
Morgan Stanley
Derivative Products
(Netherlands) BV
Morgan Stanley
Waterloo Limmted
Morgan Stanley
Piccadilly Limited

Country of
Incorporation
Tarwan

United
Kingdom
United
Kingdom

United
Kingdom
Unuted
Kingdom
Unuted
Kingdom

United
Kingdom
United
Kingdom
United
Kingdom
Umnited
Kingdom
The
Netherlands

Cayman
Islands
Cayman
Islands

Holding
(per share
class)
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

Type of
shares held
Ordiary
Shares
Ordinary
Shares
Ordinary
Shares

Ordinary
Shares
Ordmnary
Shares
Ordmary
Shares

Ordinary
Shares
Ordinary
Shares
Ordinary
Shares
Ordinary
Shares
Ordinary
Shares

Ordinary
Shares
Ordinary
Shares

Proportion
of voting
rights
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

Nature of
business
Financial
Services
Investment
company
Investment
company

Investment
company
Investment
company
Investment
company

Investment
company
Investment
company
Investment
company
Investment
company
Investment
company

Investment
company
Investment
company

A full hst of the Company’s subsidiary and associated undertakings will be annexed to the Company’s
next annual return and filed with the Registrar of Companies All subsidhanes are included in the Group’s
consohdated financial statements

During the year there were no investments where the Group owned more than 50% of the voting nights
which were not classified as subsidiaries, and none of the Group’s subsidiaries have experienced

significant restrictions on paying dividends or repaying loans and advances

The Group consolidated various entities that were considered subsidiaries for accounting purposes where
the Group owns less than 50% eof the voting nights These subsicharies have no significant impact on the

financial positton and financial performance of the Group
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
Key management compensation

Key management personnel 15 defined as those persons having responsibility and authority for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group

The Morgan Stanley Group’s corporate governance framework gives consideration to legal, geographical
and business lines through a combination of boards of directors, and regional and global management
commuttees Accordingly, 1n addition to the Directors of the Company, key management personnel of the
Group 15 considered to include the boards of directors of certain parent compantes, including that of
Morgan Stanley, certain members of key Morgan Stanley Group management commuttees, and certain
executive officers of Morgan Stanley

The boards of the Group’s parent companies, the management committees and the executive officers
cover the full range of the Morgan Stanley Group’s busmess activities Only those members with
responsibility for the Institutional Securities business, being the only reportable business segment of the
Group, are considered to be key management personnel of the Group The aggregate compensation
below represents the proportion of compensation paid to these key management personnel, including the
Directors of the Company, in respect of their services to the Group

Compensation paid to key management personnel in respect of their services rendered to the Group 15

2009 2008

$millions $millions

Short-term employee benefits 38 31
Post-employment benefits 1 1
Share-based payment 47 41
Other long-term employee benefits 16 9
Termination benefits - 3
102 85

The share-based payment costs disclosed above reflect the amortisation of equity-based awards granted
to key management personnel over the last three years and are therefore not directly aligned with other
staff costs in the current period

77




MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL plc
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2009

35,

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

2009 2008
$millions $millions
Total emoluments of all Directors:
Aggregate emoluments 12 14
Disclesures in respect of the highest paid Director:
Aggregate emoluments excluding pension contributions 4 4
The number of Directors who exercised share options - 5

Directors” emoluments have been calculated as the sum of cash, bonuses and benefits in kind

All Directors who are employees of the Group are ehigible for shares and share options of the parent
company, Morgan Stanley, awarded under the Group's equity based long term incentive schemes In
accordance with Schedule 5 paragraph 1(3)(a) of The Large and Medum-sized Compames and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, the above disclosures include neither the value of shares or
share options awarded, nor the gains made on exercise of share options During the year no Directors
exercised share options awarded under these incentive schemes, including the highest paid Director
(2008 five)

The value of assets (other than shares or share options) awarded under other long term ncentive schemes
has been included n the above disclosures when the awards vest, which 1s generally within three years
from the date of the award

There are six directors to whom retirement benefits are accrutng under a money purchase scheme (2008
seven) The Morgan Stanley UK Group Pension Plan operated a defined benefit pension scheme, which
closed 1n September 1996 One Director has deferred defined benefits under the scheme (2008 one) In
addition, one Director has benefits accruing under the Alternative Retirement Plan, a defined benefit
scheme, operated by Morgan Stanley UK Limuted (2008 one) Three directors have benefits accruing
under the Morgan Stanley non-UK defined berefits schemes (2008 four)

The Group has provided no loans or other credit advances to 1ts Directors during the year
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
Transactions with related parties

The Morgan Stanley Group conducts business for clients globally through a combinatton of both
functional and legal entity organisational structures  Accordingly, the Group s closely iniegrated with the
operations of the Morgan Stanley Group and enters mnto transactions with other Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings for the purposes of utihsing financing, trading and nisk management, and infrastructure
services The nature of these relationships along with information about the transactions and outstanding
balances 1s given below The Group has made no provision for bad and doubtful debts related to the
amount of outstanding balances from related parties (2008 nil)

Financing

The Group receaves financing from and provides financing to other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings
in the following forms

General funding

General funding 1s undated, unsecured, floating rate lending Funding may be received or provided for
specific transaction related financing requirements, or for general intra group financing purposes The
interest rates are established by the Morgan Stanley Group Treasury function for alt entittes within the
Morgan Stanley Group and approximate the market rate of interest that the Morgan Stanley Group incurs
in financing its business

Details of the outstanding balances on these financing arrangements and the related interest income /
expense recognised mn the consolidated 1ncome statement during the year are shown n the table below

2009 2008
Interest Balance Interest Balance
$millions $mllions $millions $millions
Amounts due from the 29 7,635 194 1,050
Group’s direct and indirect
parent companies
Amounts due from other 433 6,419 1,355 7,400
Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings
462 14,054 1,549 8,450
Amounts due to the 759 14,174 2,885 15,059
Group’s direct and indirect
parent companies
Amounts due to other 411 16,039 1,432 17,385
Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings
1,170 30,213 4,317 32,444

Subordinated loans

The Group receives subordinated loans from other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings Details of the
terms of such loans, including the contractual maturity and the interest rates are provided n note 17 The
nterest rates are established by the Morgan Stanley Group treasury function based on available market
information at the time the loan 1s provided
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Trading and risk management

In the course of financing its business, the Group enters nto collateralised financing transactions with
other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings All such transactions are entered 1nto on an arm’s length
basis Details of the outstanding balances on such transactions and interest receivable / payable during
the period are shown 1n the table below

2009 2008
Interest Balance Interest Balance
$millions $millions $millions $millions
Amounts due from other 2,694 41,130 7,173 39,958
Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings
2,694 41,130 7,173 39,958
Amounts due to other 3,495 72,952 11,471 73,027
Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings
3,495 72,952 11,471 73,027

The Group enters into purchases and sales of securities and derivative transactions with other Morgan
Stanley Group undertakings to facilitate the provision of financral services to clients on a global basis and
to manage the market risks associated with such business, and for proprietary tradimg purposes  All such
transactrons are entered into on an arm’s length basis  The total amounts receivable and payable on such
securities transactions not yet settled and the fawr value of such derivatives contracts outstanding at the
end of the period were as follows

2009 2008
$millions $millions

Amounts due from the Group’s direct and indirect parent

compantes on unsettled securities and derivatives

transactions 1,195 1,508

Amounts due from other Morgan Stanley Group

undertakings on unsettied secunties and denvatives

transactions 50819 46,275
52,014 47,783

Amounts due to the Group’s direct and indirect parent
compantes on unsettled securities and derivatives

transactions 1,164 1,332

Amounts due to other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings

on unsettled securities and derivanves transactions 51,090 42,943
52,254 44,275
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The Group has received collateral of $5,092 milhon (2008 $4,028 million) from other Morgan Stanley
Group undertakings and has ptedged cotlateral of $4,676 mullion (2008 $5,205 million) to other Morgan
Stanley Group undertakings to mtigate credit risk on exposures ansing under denivatives contracts
between the Group and the other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings

In addstion, the management and execution of business strategies on a global basis results in many
Morgan Stanley transactions impacting a number of Morgan Stanley Group entittes The Morgan Stanley
Group operates a number of 1ntra-group policies to ensure that, where possible, revenues and related costs
are matched For the year ended 31 December 2009, a net loss of $2,805 million was recognised 1n the
consolidated income statement arising from such policies (2008 $1.896 mallion gain)

Until 1 August 2009, policies for certain of these business strategies transacted by the Group, where that
business strategy booked positions on another Morgan Stanley Group entity, any losses on these posttions
were only transferred to the Group to the extent that the losses were offset by profits anising on the same
business strategy after the loss was incurred  Since August 2009, these policies have been refined so that
losses are now netted across all business strategies on each loss bearing entity and are transferred to the
Group to the extent that the losses offset against available profits from the same population of strategies
within the Group This change 1n approach has accelerated the recogmition of losses previously held on
other Morgan Stanley Group entities and has negatively impacted the Group’s performance during the
year

Infrastructure services

The Group incurs and receives management charges from other Morgan Stanley Group undertakings for
infrastructure services, ncluding the provision of staff and office facihties Management recharges
incurred or recerved during the period are as follows

2009 2008
Other Other
Staff costs services Staff costs services
$millions $millions $millions $millions
Amounts recharged from the - 239 - 304
Group’s direct and indirect
parent companies
Amounts recharged from / (to} 1,630 68 1,803 (136)
other Morgan Stanley Group
undertakings
1,630 307 1,803 168

Amounts outstanding at the balance sheet date are included within the general funding balances disclosed
above

Other related party transactions

The Group has recerved a guarantee from Morgan Stanley International Limited, to guarantee the
obligations of the Company under denvative contracts to Morgan Stanley Capital Services Inc , Morgan
Stanley Capital Group Inc , MSDW Equity Finance Services (Cayman) Limited, MSDW Equity Finance
Services (Lux) S A R L and Morgan Stanley Asia Secunities Products LLC All entities are fellow
Morgan Stanley Group undertakings As at 31 December 2009, no call had been made by the Group
under this arrangement
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 8 Aprnil 2010 the UK government enacted legislation as part of the 2010 Finance Act imposing a Bank
Payroll Tax The tax apphies to discretionary bonuses over a certan amount awarded to certam
employees within scope (“Banking Employees™) 1n the period from 9 December 2009 to 5 Apnil 2010
The lability for the tax will be that of the entity that benefits from the services of the Banking Employees,
rather than the employing entity The Group s still evaluating the impact of this legislation and has
recognised a charge of $256 nuilion 1n 2010, when the legislation was enacted, based on the minimum
amount currently estimated will be payable by the Group in August 2010 Due to the ongoing
uncertainties regarding the application, scope and implementation of the legislation, the final payment
amount may differ from this estimated financial effect
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2009 2008
Note $millions $millions
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 3 I 14
Investments
- Available-for-sale financial assets 4 41 63
- Subsidiary and associated undertakings 4 127 128
179 205
CURRENT ASSETS
Financtal assets classified as held for trading 5 226,393 272,605
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 6 1,907 1,395
Loans and receivables
- Cash at bank 7 13,378 19,787
- Debtors 8 212,821 182,908
Other assets 9 343 841
454,842 477,536
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE
YEAR
Financial Labilities classified as held for trading 5 198,394 235,826
Financial Liabilities designated at fair value through profit and
loss 6 5,907 4,046
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1 234,529 213,914
Other creditors t2 267 1,579
439,097 455,365
NET CURRENT ASSETS . 15,745 22,171
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 15,924 22,376
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE
THAN ONE YEAR
Financial habihities at amortised cost 11 9,336 13,736
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES I3 21 28
NET ASSETS EXCLUDING PENSION LIABILITY 6,567 8,612
Pension hability 4 2
6,563 8,610
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 14 3,078 4328
Share premium account 15 513 513
Capital redemption reserve 15 1,399 149
Foreign currency revaluation reserve 15 (18) (14)
Fair value reserve 15 (4) N
Capital contribution reserve 15 3 3
Pension reserve 15 (2) (I
Profit and loss account 15 1,594 3,633
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 6,563 8,610

These financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for 1ssue on 22 Apnil 2010
Signed on behalf of the Board

Duector DAVID NSO
The notes on pages 84 to 105 To{myan integral part of the financial statements
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, modified by the mclusion of
financial mstruments at fair value as described 1n note 1(f) below, and 1n accordance with apphcable
United Kingdom company law and accounung standards

The Company’s ultimate UK parent undertaking, Morgan Stantey International Limited, presents
information in accordance with FRS 29 Financial Instruments Disclosures  Accordingly, the Company
1s exempt from the disclosure requirements of FRS 29

b. The going concern assumption

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position are set out 1n the Business Review section of the consoltdated Directors’ report
onpages | to 5

As set out 1n the Directors’ report, the Company operates withm the global hquidity management
framework of the Morgan Stanley Group Throughout the difficult market conditions, this framework has
continued to provide sufficient liquidity to the Group and to the Company, and the Company’s capital and
liquidity position 1s satisfactory

Taking all of these factors into consideration, the Directors believe 1t 15 reasonable to assume that the
Company will have access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the gomng concern basis in prepaning the annual report and
financiai statements

c. Functional currency

Items included n the financial statements are measured and presented in US dollars, the currency of the
primary economic environment 11 which the Company operates All currency amounts 1n the financial
statements are rounded to the nearest million US dollars

d. Foreign currencies

All monetary assets and liabilities denominated 1n currencies other than US dollars are translated into US
dollars at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date Assets and Liabilities of the overseas branches are
transiated mto US dollars using the closing rate method Transactions 1n currencies other than US dollars
are recorded at the rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions Translation differences arising from
the net investments in the overseas branches are taken to the foreign currency revaluation reserve
Foreign exchange differences on financial investments classified as available-for-sale are recorded in the
‘Fair value reserve’ in equity, with the exception of translation differences on the amortised cost of the
monetary available-for-sale assets, which are recognised through the profit and loss account All other
translation differences are taken through the profit and loss account Exchange differences recognised in
the profit and loss account are presented 1n ‘Other income’ or ‘Other expense’, except where noted 1n 1{e)
below
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

e. Financial instruments

The Company classifies 1ts financial assets into the following categories on mtial recogmtion financial
assets classified as held for trading, financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale fixed asset investments, other fixed asset investments and loans and receivables

The Company classifies 1ts financial habilities into the following categories on imnal recognition
financial habilitses classified as held for trading, financial habilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss and financial habilities at amortised cost

More mformation regarding these classifications 1s included below

i} Financial instruments classified as held for trading

Financial instruments ctassified as held for trading, including all derivatives, are imtially recorded on
trade date at fair value (see note I(f) below) All subsequent related gains and losses, mncluding
foreign exchange differences, interest and dividends, are reflected 1n the profit and loss account n
‘Net gains on financial instrumenis classified as held for trading’ Transaction costs are excluded
from the 1mtial and subsequent farr value measurement of the financial mstrument These costs are
recogmsed 1n the profit and loss account in ‘Other expense’

i1) Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss

The Company has designated certain financial assets and financial habilities at fair value through
proftt or loss when either

* the financial assets or financial liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a
fair value basis, or

* the designation at far value elimnates or signuficantly reduces an accounting mismatch which
would otherwise arise, or

» the financial asset or financial liabihty contains an embedded denvative that stgmficantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under the contract

From the date the transaction wn a financial instrument designated at fair value 1s entered into (trade
date} unul settlement date, the Company recogmises any unrealised fair value changes in the contract
as financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss  On settlement date, the fair
value of consideration given or recerved 15 recognised as a financial instrument designated at fair
value through profit or loss Following settlement date, all related gains and losses, including foreign
exchange differences, are reflected in the profit and loss account

ili) Available-for-sale fixed asset investments

Fixed asset investments categorised as available-for-sale are recorded on trade date and are imitially
recogrused and subsequently measured at fair value (see note 1(f) below)

For equity instruments, dividend income and imparrment losses are recorded in the profit and loss
account All other gams and losses on debt and equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are
recogmsed in the *Fair value reserve’ in equity

Transaction costs that are directly attnibutable to the acquisition of the avatlable-for-sale fixed asset
investment are added to the fair value on initial recogmtion

On disposal or impairment of an available-for-sale fixed asset investment, the cumulative gain or loss
in the ‘Fair value reserve’ s transferred to and recogmised 1n the profit and loss account
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
e, Financial instruments (continued)

iv)Investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings

Investments 1n subsidiary and associated undertakings outside the scope of FRS 26 are recorded
within “Investments n subsidiary and associated undertakings’ and are stated at cost, less provision
for any impairment Interest recogmised 1s on an accruals basis, dividend income 1s recognised when
the Company’s night to receive payment 1s established, wparrment losses and reversals of
impairment losses, and foreign exchange differences on monetary investments, are reported in the
profit and loss account

All other imvestments 1n group undertakings are classified as available-for-sale fixed asset
investments and accounted for as described 1n note 1(e)(1)

v) Loans and receivables and financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial assets categorised as loans and receivables are imitially recognised on settlement date at fair
value (see note I(f) below) and subsequently measured at amortised cost less allowance for
impawment  Interest 1s recognised m the profit and loss account 1n ‘Interest ncome’, using the
effective interest rate method Transaction costs that are directly attnbutable to the acquisition or
1ssue of the financial asset or financial hability are added to or deducted from the fair value on imtial
recogmtion

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial lability (or group of financial assets or financial habilities) and of allocating the interest
mmcome or nterest expense over the expected life of the financial asset or financial hability The
effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial hability (or, where appropriate a
shorter period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability The effective
interest rate 1s estabhished on imtial recogmition of the financial asset and hability The calculation of
the effective interest rate includes all fees and commuissions paid or received, transaction costs, and
discounts or premums that are an integral part of the effective interest rate  Transaction costs are
incrementat costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, 1ssue or disposal of a financial asset
or habiity

Impairment losses, reversals of impairment losses and foreign exchange differences on financial
assets classified as loans and receivables are recognised n the profit and loss account m either ‘Other
expense’ or ‘Other income” as appropniate

Financial habifities held at amortised cost are inttially recognised on settlement date at fair value (see
note 1{f) below) and subsequently measured at amortised cost Interest 1s recogmsed in the profit and
loss account 1n ‘Interest expense’ using the effective interest rate method as described above
Foreign exchange differences on financial hiabilities held at amortised cost are recogmsed in the
profit and loss account in ‘Other income’ or ‘Other expense” as appropriate

In the course of financing its business and as part of 1ts trading activities, the Company enters into
arrangements which mvolve the sale of securities with agreements to repurchase, the purchase of
securities with resale agreements, the lending of securities with collateral received and the borrowing
of securities with collateral given Cash collateral balances repayable and accrued mterest anising
under repurchase agreements and securities lending arrangements are classified as ‘Financial
liabilities at amortised cost’ and the related securities, where owned by the Company, are included in
‘Financial assets classified as held for trading® Cash collateral balances receivable and accrued
interest ansing under resale agreements and securities borrowing arrangements are classified as
debtors within ‘Loans and receivables’  Securities received by the Company under resale
arrangements and securities borrowing arrangements are generally not recogmsed on the balance
sheet

The redeemable preference shares 1ssued by the Company are classified as financial habiltties at
amortised cost in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Dividends on these
redeemable preference shares are recognised 1n the profit and loss account
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

f. Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value measurement

Fair value 1s defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a hability (1 e
the “exit price™) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date

In determiming fair value, the Company uses various valuation approaches A merarchy of inputs 1s used
in measuring fair value that maximuses the use of observable inputs and mMmimmises the use of
unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be used when available Observable
inputs are mputs that market participants would use 1n pricing the asset or liability developed based on
market data obtained from sources independent of the Company Unobservable inputs are mputs that
reflect the Company’s assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use 1n pricing the
asset or hability, developed based on the best mmformation available n the circumstances

The availabitity of observable nputs can vary from product to product and 1s affected by a wide variety of
factors, including, for example, the type of product, whether the product s new and not yet established n
the marketplace, the hquidity of the markets and other characteristics particular to the transaction To the
extent that valuation 1s based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable in the market,
the determunation of fair value requires more judgement

The Company uses prices and iputs that are current as of the measurement date, including during periods
of market dislocation In periods of market dislocation the observabihity of prices and nputs may be
reduced for many istruments

Valuation techniques

Fair value for many financial instruments, including over-the-counter (“OTC”) financial nstruments, 18
derived using pricing models Pricing models take into account the contract terms (including the
maturity), as well as multiple inputs including, where applicable, equity prices, interest rate yield curves,
credit curves, correlation, creditworthiness of the counterparty, option volattlity and currency rates The
impact of the Company’s own credit spreads 1s also considered when measuring the farr value of
liabiliwes, including OTC denvative contracts Where appropriate, valuation adjustments are made to
account for vanous factors such as hqudsty risk (bid-ask adjustments), credt quality and model
uncertainty These adjustments are subject to judgement, are applied on a consistent basis and are based
upon observable inputs where available The Company generally subjects all valuations and models to a
review process mutially and on a pertodic basis thereafter

Fair value 15 a market-based measure considered from the perspective of a market participant rather than
an ennty-specific measure Therefore, even when market assumptions are not readily available, the
Company’s own assumptions are set to reflect those that the Company believes market participants would
use 1n pricing the asset or hability at the measurement date

Depending on the product and the terms of the transaction, the fair value of OTC financial instruments
can be modelled using a seres of techniques, including closed-form analytic formulae such as the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, simulation models or a combination thereof Many pricing models do not
entail material subjectivity because the methodologies employed do not necessitate sigmficant judgement,
and the pricing mnputs are observed from actively quoted markets In the case of more established
derivative products, the pricing models used by the Company are widely accepted by the financial
services industry
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
f. Fair value of financial instruments (contineed)
Gains and losses on inception

In the normal course of business, the fair value of a financial instrument on mmtial recogmtion i1s the
transaction price (1e the fair value of the consideration given or received) In certain Circumstances,
however, the fair value will be based on other observable current market transactions tn the same
mstrument, without modificatton or repackaging, or on a valuation techmque whose variables include
only data from observable markets When such evidence exists, the Company recognises a gain or loss on
mnception of the transaction

When unobservable market data has a significant impact on determining fair value at the inception of the
transaction, the entire imtiat change in farr value indicated by the valuation techmque as at the transaction
date 15 not recogmsed immediately n the profit and loss account and 1s recogmsed mnstead when the
market data becomes observable

g. Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, an assessment 1s made as to whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment in the value of financial assets classified as available-for-sale fixed asset investments, other
fixed asset investments or loans and recetvables [Impairment losses are recogmsed 1if an event has
occurred which will have an adverse impact on the expected future cash flows of an asset and the
expected 1mpact can be reliably estimated

Imparrment losses on available-for-sale fixed asset investments are measured as the difference between
cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and the current fair value When a decline 1n the
fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognised through the statement of total
recogmsed gans and losses and there 1s evidence that the asset 1s impaired, the cumulative loss that had
been recognised through the statement of total recogmsed gains and losses 1s removed from reserves and
recogmsed 1n the profit and loss account within ‘Net gains and losses on fixed asset investments in
available-for-sale financial assets’

Impairment losses on fixed asset investments 1n subsidiary and associated undertakings, measured as the
difference between cost and the current estimated recoverable amount, are recognised within the profit
and loss account in ‘Net gams and losses on fixed asset mvestments i subsidiary and associated
undertakings’ and are reflected against the carrying amount of the impaired asset on the balance sheet

Impairment losses on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate Such impairment losses are recognised n the
profit and loss account within ‘Other expenses’ and are reflected agaimnst the carrying amount of the
imparired asset on the balance sheet Interest on the unpaiwred asset continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount based on the original effective interest rate of the asset

Subsequent increases n far value of previously impaired equity avaiable-for-sale financial assets are
reported as fair value gains in the profit and loss account and not separately 1dentified as an impairment
reversal For all other financial assets, 1f 1n a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss decreases because of an event occurring after the impairrment was recogmised, the previously
recogmsed impairment loss 1s reversed as detailed by financial asset in note 1{e)(in and v)
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h. Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost net of depreciation and any provision for impairment in value For
assets n the course of construction {generally fit out costs), interest that 1s directly attributable to the
construction of the qualifying asset 1s capitalised as a cost of the asset

For premises held under operating leases, a reinstatement provision 15 recognised for the estimated cost to
remnstate the premises at the end of the lease period When the reinstatement provision 1s established, an
equivalent asset 15 recogmsed and included n the cost of leasehold improvements at the mitial present
value of any reinstatement obligations The discount effect included 1n the reinstatement provision 1s
reversed over ume using a constant effective yield method and included within ‘Other expense’ in the
profit and loss account The reinstatement asset 1s depreciated over the useful economuc hfe of the
relevant leasehold improvement asset

Depreciation 1s provided on tangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of the assets on a
straight line basis over their expected useful lives as follows

Leasehold improvements - shorter of remaining lease term and 25 years
Fixtures, fittings and equipment -3 to 8 years

i. Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis
over the lease term Lease incentives are recogmised as a reduction of rentals payable and are allocated on
a straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and a period ending on a date from which 1t 1s
expected the market rent will be payable

Rentals receivable under operating leases are credited to the profit and loss account on a straight-line
basis over the lease term  Lease incentives are recogmsed as a reduction of rentals receivable and are
allocated on a straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and a period ending on a date from
which 1t 15 expected the market rent will be receivable

j. Taxation

UK corporation tax 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid / recovered using the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Full provision has been made for deferred tax assets and lLiabilities arising from timing differences
Deferred tax 15 measured using the average tax rates that are expected to apply n the periods m which the
timing differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are recogmised to the extent that it 15
regarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered Deferred tax assets and Liabilies are not
discounted

k. Employee compensation plans

Morgan Stanley operates equity based compensation plans on behalf of the Company, n relanon to
which, the Company pays Morgan Stanley 1n constderation of the procurement of the transfer of shares to
employees The cost of equity based transactions with employees 15 measured based on the fair value of
the equity instruments at grant date  Fair value of stock unit awards 1s based on the market price of
Morgan Stanley shares and the fair value of stock option awards 15 estimated using the Black-Scholes
option pricing medel, which takes into account the option’s exercise price, its expected term, the risk free
interest rate and the expected volatility of the market price of Morgan Stanley shares Non-market
vesting conditions are not taken wnto account when measuring fair value, but are reflected by adjusting
over time the number of equity istruments included 1n the measurement of the transaction such that the
amount ultimately recogmsed reflects the number that actually vest The expense for FRS 20 Share-
based payment (“FRS 2{0"") purposes is taken directly to ‘Other expense’ 1n the profit and loss account, the
corresponding increase 1n reserves 1S reduced to the extent that payments are due to Morgan Stanley
respect of these awards
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k. Employee compensation plans (continued)

Morgan Stanley also mamntains deferred compensation plans for the benefit of certain employees that
provide a return to the participating employees based upon the performance of various referenced
mvestments Such awards are recogmised over time, in accordance with the awards’ vesting conditions,
within the balance sheet and are remeasured to fawr value at each reporting date The Company
economically hedges the exposure created by these deferred compensation schemes by entering into
derivative transactions with other Morgan Stanley undertakings The denivatives are recognised within
financial instruments classified as held for trading

I. Retirement benefits

The Company operates defined contribution schemes The contributions due are recognised n the profit
and loss account when payable

The Company also operates defined benefit pension schemes For the defined benefit scheme, habilities
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected umit method and discounted at a rate that reflects
the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the scheme
liabilines Scheme assets are measured at their fair value A surplus of scheme assets over habilities 1s
recognised 1n the balance sheet as an asset where recoverable Where scheme habilittes exceed scheme
assets, the deficit 1s recognised in the balance sheet as a liability The current service cost and any past
service costs 18 charged to ‘Other expense’ The expected return on scheme assets less the unwinding of
the discount on the scheme liabilities 15 recogmsed within ‘Interest income’ / ‘Interest expense’

Actuanal gains and losses are recogmsed in full in the period 1n which they occur 1n the statement of
recognised gamns and losses

Details of the plans are given 1n note 18 to these financial statements
m. Cash flow statement

The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking preduces a cash flow statement  Accordingly, the Company,
which 15 a wholly-owned subsidiary, has elected to avail itself of the exemption provided in FRS |
{(Revised 1996} Cash Flow Statements and not present a cash flow statement

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

As permutted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own
profit and loss account for the period The Company reported a loss after tax for the year ended 31
December 2009 of $548 mullion (2008 $55 mullion loss) Sigmificant impairment provisions made during
2009 drive the Company’s loss for the year, see note 4 for further details
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3 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Fixtures,
Leasehold fittings and
improvements equipment Total
$millions $milhons $mullions
Cost
At | January 2009 16 12 28
Additions - | i
Foreign exchange revaluation on
assets held 1n overseas branches 1 1 2
Disposals - 1)) N
At 31 December 2009 17 13 30
Depreciation
At 1 January 2009 6 8 14
Charge for the year / pertod 3 2 5
Foreign exchange revaluation on
assets held 1n overseas branches - 1 i
Disposals - (1) (1)
At 31 December 2009 9 i0 19
Net book value
At 31 December 2008 10 4 14
At 31 December 2009 3 3 11
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4. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Fixed asset investments classified as available-for-sale

Fixed asset mvestments that are categonsed as available-for-sale are corporate equities

Movements 1n fixed asset investments classified as available-for-sale during the period are as follows

2009 2008
$millions $millions
Fair value
At the beginning of the year / pertod 63 32
Additions - 46
Disposals (20) )
Foreign exchange revaluation 1 (3
Changes in fair value
- recognsed 1n equity (3) {5)
At the end of the year / period 41 63
Included 1n *Available-for-sale financial assets” are histed investments of $nil (2008 $nil)
Fixed asset investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings
Subsidiary Associated
undertakings undertakings Total
$mullions $mullions $millions
Cost
At 1 January 2009 136 4 140
Addtions 085 - 985
Disposals - ) 4
At 31 December 2009 1,121 - 1,121
Impairment provisions
At 1 January 2009 (12) - (12)
Provisions made during the year (982) - (982)
At 31 December 2009 {994) - (994)
Net book value
At 31 December 2008 124 4 128
At 31 December 2009 127 - 127

During the year the Company waived payment of receivables aggregating $982 million from several of its
subsidiary undertakings These waivers have been recogmised as capital contributions for the subsidiaries
and a provision for imparrment of each subsidiary undertaking has been recognised for the aggregate

amount of the capital contribution made

Details of the sigmificant subsidiary and associated undertakings are provided m note 35 of the
consolidated financial statements A full list of the Company's subsidiary and associated undertakings

will be annexed to the Company’s next annual return and filed with the Registrar of Companies
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

5.

TRADING

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified as held for trading are summansed in the table below

Fair value
Denvative financial instruments (listed
and OTC)

Interest rate and currency swaps and
options, credit derivanves and other
fixed income securities contracts

Foreign exchange forward contracts
and options

Equity securities contracts (including
equity swaps, warrants and options)

Commodity forwards, options and
swaps

Government debt securities
Corporate equittes
Corporate and other debt

Total financial instruments classified
as held for trading

2008
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
$millions $mllions $millions $millions
132,844 146,310 173,018 185,488
11,292 11,487 22,739 23,780
1,711 2,394 3,771 2,658
18,316 9,554 15,350 6,978
164,163 169,745 214,878 218,904
12,867 11,859 11,551 5,406
29,133 13,737 31,631 9,133
20,230 3,053 14,545 2,383
226,393 198,394 272,605 235,826

There are no terms and conditions of any financial asset or Liability classified as held for trading that may
individually signitficantly affect the amount, iming and certainty of future cash flows for the Company

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets and financial habilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are summansed n

the table below

Fair value

Prepaid OTC contracts

Structured notes

Other financial assets and hiabilities

2008
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
$millions $millions $millions $millions
1,784 2,214 1,205 1,197
- 659 - 1,164
123 3,034 190 1,685
1,907 5.907 1,395 4,046

There are no terms and conditions of any financial asset or lability designated at fair value through profit
or loss that may individually sigmftcantly affect the amount, uming and certainty of future cash flows for

the Company

CASH AT BANK

Included within cash at bank 15 an amount of $7,962 mutlion (2008 $10,616 million) which represents
segregated client money, held 1n accordance with the FSA’s Client Money Rules, and an amount of $233
million (2008 $269 million) which represents other chient money
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8. DEBTORS

2009 2008
$millions $nullions
Debtors classified within loans and receivables at amortised cost
Trade debtors
External counterparties 36,211 36,113
Group undertakings 14,983 14,972
Securities purchased under agreements to resell and cash collateral on
stocks borrowed
External counterparties 74,641 46,896
Group undertakings 45,841 45,523
Other amounts due from Group undertakings 39,332 38,074
Other debtors classified within loans and receivables 1,813 1,330
212,821 182,908
9. OTHER ASSETS
2009 2008
$millions $millions
Corporation tax 208 381
Deferred taxation (see note 10) 27 160
Prepayments and accrued income 108 300
343 841
10. DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax has been fuily recognised and 1s analysed as follows
2009 2008
Asset Asset
$millions $millions
Accelerated capital allowances 7 5
Tax losses carried forward - 135
Deferred compensanon - 6
Other uming differences 20 14
27 160
The movement in the deferred tax asset during the period 1s analysed as follows
Asset
$millions
At | January 2009 160
Amounts recognised n the profit and loss account
- Current pertod timing differences (104)
Amounts recognised in equity through the statement
of total recognised gains and losses
- Current period timing differences 2)
Future tax charges on transitional accounting
adjustments |
Prior year timing differences (28)
At 31 December 2009 27
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11. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST

2609 2008
$millions $millions
Financial liabilities at amortised cost falling due within one year
Bank loans and overdraits 128 451
Trade creditors
External counterparties 52,394 47,327
Group undertakings 12,840 8,961
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase and cash collateral on
stocks loaned
External counterparties 44916 25,561
Group undertakings 65,380 73.829
Other amounts owing to Group undertakings 55,482 55,019
Other financial llabilities 3,389 2,766
234,529 213,914
Financial liabilities at amortised cost falling due after more than
one year
Financial instruments 15sued
Subordinated loans 8,550 12,950
Preference shares 786 786
9,336 13,736
Total financial liabilities at amortised cost 243,865 227,650

Included within Other amounts owing to Group undertakings are amounts of $5,052 mllion (2008
$8,680 mullion) representing cash collateral received as security for open trading positions held with other
Group undertakings

Subordinated loans

The amounts subject to subordinated loan agreements are wholly repayable as shown below

Counterparty Repayment Date Interest Rate 2009 2008
$millions $millions

Morgan Stanley Strategic 29 October 2026 LIBOR plus 644 1,494

Funding Limated 2 00%

Morgan Stanley 31 October 2025 LIBOR plus 7,906 7,906

International Finance § A t 25%

Morgan Stanley 31 October 2026 LIBOR plus 1% - 3,550

International Holdings Inc

8.550 12,950

All amounts outstanding under subordimated loan agreements are repayable at any ime at the Company’s
option, subject to seven business days’ notice to the FSA, which has the nght under the agreement to
refuse consent to repayment

On 20 November 2009 the Group repaid $3,550 million and $850 mulhion under 1ts loan facilities with
Morgan Stanley International Holdings Inc and Morgan Stanley Strategic Funding Limited respectively
These repayments were made as part of the Group’s capital management activities

The Company has net had any defaults of principal, interest or other breaches with respect to its
subordinated loans dunng the period
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11.

12,

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST (CONTINUED)

2009 2008
$millions $millions
Allotted and fully paid Class B preference shares of $1 each,
classified as financial liabilities
At the beginning and the end of the period 786 786

At 31 December 2009 the Company’s 1ssued share capital included 785,772,500 Class B non-cumulative
preference shares of $1 each, classified as habilities The holders of the Class B non-cumulative preferred
shares of $1 each are entitled to receive a LIBOR-based dividend as defined in the Company’s Articles of
Association The shares do not entitle holders to vote at any general meeting of the Company On a return
of capatal, the holders of the Class B redeemable non-cumulative preferred shares shall rank equalty with
the Company’s Class C non-redeemable non-cumulative preference shares in prionty to any other class of
share

Duning the year, dividends of $31 million (2008 $42 mullion) were paid to the holders of the Class B
redeemable non-cumulative preference shares

OTHER CREDITORS

2009 2008
$millions $millions

Amounts falling due within one year
Corporation tax 65 289
Accruals and deferred income 202 1,290
267 1,579
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13.  PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

Property Litigation Total

$mitlions $millions $millions
At 1 January 2009 2 26 28
Additional provisions - 15 15
Provision utthsed - (23) 23)
Foreign exchange adjustment - 1 |
At 31 December 2009 2 19 21

Litigation Matters

During the period the Company has been involved in various continuing and other hitigation matters and
provisions have been recogmised and disclosed in accordance with FRS 12 ‘Provisions, Contingent
Liabiuines and Contingent Assets’ The Directors are of the opinion that 1t would be seriously prejudicial
to the position of the Company to disclose details of individual continuing htigation matters and the
amounts provided n respect of them

14. SHARE CAPITAL

2009 2008
$mullions $millions

Allotted and fully paid:
Equity shares
2,998,332,648 ordinary shares of $1 each 2,998 2,998
17,615,107 ordinary shares of £1 each 30 30
50,000,000 class C non-redeemable non-cumulative preferred 50 1,300
shares of $1 each

3,078 4,328

Equity shares
All ordinary shares are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling at the date the shares were pad up

The holders of the ordsnary shares, wrrespective of currency denomination, are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from ume to time and are entitted to one vote per share at meetings of the Company
1n accordance with the Company’s articles of association

On 23 December 2009, the Company repurchased and cancelled 1,250,000,000 Class C non-redeemable
non-cumulative preference shares of $1 each, at par value The holders of the Class C non-redeemable
non-cumulative preference shares of $1 each are entitled to receive a LIBOR based dividend n prionty to
any other class of share in accordance with the Company’s articles of association The holders of such
shares 1 1ssue shall carry such number of votes in aggregate as represents 10% of the total voting rights
of all the members of the Company having a right to attend and vote at general meetings On a return of
capital, the holders of the Class C non-redeemable non-cumulative preference shares shall rank equally
with the Class B non-cumulative preference shares (see note 11), in priority to any other class of share

Other shares classified as financial habilities

The terms of other shares classifted as financial habihittes are detailed 1n note 11, ‘Financial hhabihities at
amortised cost’
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15. RECONCILIATION OF SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS AND MOVEMENTS ON RESERVES

At | December 2007

Foreign exchange differences
ansing on translation of net
assets n overseas branches

Available-for-sale financial
assets — change 1n fair value
recognised directly n equity

Share based payments

Loss for the penod

At 31 December 2008

Foreign exchange differences
ansing on transtation of net
assets 1n overseas branches

Available-for-sale financial
assets — change 1n farr value
recognised directly in equity

Penston reserve movement
Net capital contrtbution
Preference share repurchase
Loss for the period
Dividends

At 31 December 2009

Foreign
Called up Share currency Capital Capital Fair

share  premaum revaluation contnbution redemption value Pension Retammed
capital account reserve reserve reserve  reserve reserve earmngs Total
$milhons  $mmlhions $mullions $milhons $mullions  $mullions  $millions $millions $mullions
4,328 513 6)) 3 149 4 ()] 3.685 8,676
- - ) - . . - - ©)
- - - - - (5} - - (5}
- - - - - - - 3 3
- - - - - - - (55) (55)
4328 513 (14) 3 145 (1) Q)] 3,633 8,610
- 4) - - - - - )
- - - - - 3) - - &)
- - - - ! - )
- - - - - - - (40) (40)
(1,250) - - 1,250 - - (1,250) (1,250)
- - - - - (548) (548)
R - - - - - - (201) (201)
3,078 513 (18) 3 1,399 4) 2) 1,594 6,563
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16.

17.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Durmng the next year the Company 1s commutted 10 pay $10 million (2008 39 million) 1n respect of
operating leases as follows

Land and Land and

buildings buildings
2009 2008
$millions $millions

Matunty of lease

Within one year 4 1
In two to five years 6 |
Over five years - 7
10 9

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
Deferred stock awards

Morgan Stanley has made deferred stock awards pursuant to equity-based compensation plans The plans
provide for the deferral of a portion of certain key employees’ discretionary compensation with awards
made 1n the form of restricted common stock or 1n the form of a nght 10 receive unrestricted shares of
common stock 1n the future (“restricted stock units™) Awards under these plans are generally subject to a
sole vesting condition of service over ime and to restrictions on sale, transfer or assignment until the end
of a specified period, generally two to three years from date of grant All or a portion of an award may be
cancelled if employment 15 terminated before the end of the relevant vesting period All or a pertion of a
vested award may also be cancelled in certain limited situations, inciuding ternination for cause during
the relevant restriction period

During the year Morgan Stanley granted 102,226 units of restricted common stock to employees of the
Company with a weighted average fair value per umit of $20 87 (2008 434,231 unuts, weighted average
far value $40 94), based on the market value of Morgan Stanley shares at grant date The thirteen month
reporting period 1n 2008 includes umits of restricted stock granted 1n two year end awards Units granted
n respect of employees’ 2009 discretnonary compensation have been granted in January 2010
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17.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Stock option awards

Morgan Stanley has also made stock option awards 1n the form of stock options on Morgan Stanley’s
common stock The stock options generally have an exercise price of not less than the fair value of
Morgan Stanley’s commen stock on the date of grant and generally become exercisable over a three year
period, expiring ten years from the date of grant, subject to accelerated expiration upoen termination of
employment Stock option awards have vesting, restriction and cancellanon provisions that are simular to

those 1n deferred stock awards

No options were granted 1n the current or prior vears

The fetlowing table shows activity relatimg to the Morgan Stanley Group's stock option awards for

employees of the Company

Options outstanding at beginning of
period

Forfeited during the year / period

Exercised duning the year / penod

Expired during the year / period

Options outstanding at end of year /
period

Options exercisable at end of year/
period

2009 2008
Weighted Weighted
Number average Number average
of options exercise of exercise
*000s price options price
$ “000s $
226 5117 280 47 58
1 6673 2 6673
- - 37 2611
56 3770 15 44 44
169 5553 226 5117
139 5307 143 4215

No stock options were exercised throughout the period The weighted average share price on exercise

n 2008 was $49 89
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17.

18.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The following table presents information relating to the stock options ocutstanding

2009 2008

Weighted Weighted Weighted  Weighted
average average average average
Number exercise remaining Number exercise remainng
Range of exercise of options price life in of options price life in
prices ‘000s $ years ‘000s $ years
$3000 - $3999 26 36 30 26 60 3375 23
$40 00 - $49 99 48 4715 33 69 46 92 47
$50 00 - $59 99 12 54 18 6 13 54 28 17
$60 00 - $69 99 83 66 71 35 34 66 71 76

Total 169 226

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution plans

The Company operates several Morgan Stanley defined contribution plans which require contnibutions
made to the plans to be held in trust, separate from the assets of the Company

The defined contribution plans are as follows
Morgan Stanley Flexible Company Pension Plan (Amsterdam)
Morgan Stanley & Co International plc, (Greece Branch) Group Insurance Policy
MSII Offshore Retirement Benefit Plan IV, Dubair Section

The defined contribution penston charge for the year was $531,049 (2008 $563,282) of which $nu was
accrued at 31 December 2009 (2008 $51,747) Contributions to the Morgan Stanley & Co International
plc, (Greece Branch) Group Insurance Policy ceased during the year due to the winding down of activity
n the branch

Defined benefit plans

The Company also operates several Morgan Stanley defined benefit plans, which provide pension benefits
that are based on an actuanal valuation The Company’s policy 1s to fund at least the amounts sufficient to
meet mummum funding requirements under applicable employee benefit and tax regulations

The defined benefits plans are as follows
Morgan Stanley & Co International plc Pars Branch IFC (Indemnites de Fin de Carriere)
Morgan Stanley & Co International plc Seoul Branch Severance Pay Plan
Morgan Sianley & Co International plc (Athens Branch) Retirement Indemmity

Morgan Stanley Dubai End of Service Gratuity
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18.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The most recent actuarial valuations of the defined benefit plans were carried out at 31 December 2009
The liabilities of the schemes are measured by discounting the best estimate of future cash flows to be
paid out by the scheme using the projected unit method The projected umt method 1s an accrued benefits
valuation method 1in which the scheme habilities make allowance for projected earmings

Defined benefit scheme expense

The amounts recognised 1n profit or loss 1n respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows

2009 2008
$millions $millions

Amounts recogiused 1n the profit and loss account
Current service cost I 2
Total charge 1 2

Of the charge for the year, $2 million (2008 $1 million) has been included 1n *‘Other expenses’ Actuanal
gams and losses of $2 million (2008 $239,000 gain) and exchange rate changes of $1 milhon loss ($1
millhion gain} have been recognised 1n reserves

The cumulative amount of actuanal gains and tosses 15 $2 million loss (2008 $180,000 gan)

Retirement benefit liability

2009 2008
$millions $millions

Retirement benefit Liability
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation (5) 3)
Fair value of plan assets 2 2
3 (1)
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation n (1
Retirement benefit hiability recogmsed 1n the balance sheet {4) (2)

Contributions for the year to the Plans totalled $2 million (2008 $2 million), of which $n1l was accrued at
31 December 2009 (2008 $ml) The Company expects to contribute $1 mullion (2008 $1 mu:llion) 1n the
next financial year, based upon the current funded status and the expected return assumptions for the next
financial year

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows

2009 2008
$mullions $millions

Reconcihation of defined benefit obligations
Defined benefit obligation at | January / | December 4 5
Current service cost | 2
Actuanal loss 2 -
Benefits paid (2) (H
Foreign exchange rate changes 1 2)
Benefit obligation at 31 December 6 4
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18.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Changes 1n the fair value of plan assets were as follows

2009 2008
$millions $millions

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets
Fair value of scheme assets at 1 January / | December 2 2
Employer contributions 2 2
Benefits paid (2 (N
Foreign exchange rate changes - @)
Fair value of scheme assets at 31 December 2 2

Actual return on plan assets - -

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets and the expected rates of return are
as follows

Expected return Fair value of assets

2009 2008 2009 2008

% % $mullions $millions

Other - insurance deposit 350% 0% 2 2
2 2

The following table presents the principle actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date

2009 2008

Discount rate 5 80%-7 05% 2 50%-7 15%

Rate of increase n salaries 3 50%-5 50% 3 50%-6 25%

Inflation assumption 200% 0%-2 00%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets

Rate at the beginming of the year used for profit and loss 0 00% 5 50%

Rate at the end of the year 3 50% 0 00%

The expected long-term rate of return on assets represents the Company’s best eshmate of the long-term
return on plan assets and generally was estmated by compuung a weighted average return of the
underlying long-term expected returns on the different asset classes, based on the target asset allocations
For plans where there 1s no established target asset alfocatien, actual asset allocations were used The
expected long-term return on assets 1s a long-term assumption that generally s expected to remain the
same from one year to the next unless there 1s a stgnificant change in the target asset allocation, the fees
and expenses paid by the plan or market conditions

The inflation rate applied to the Pans scheme for the period 1s 2% (2008 2%) The nflation rate for the
Dubai scheme has been determined not to apply for the current period (2008 5%) The nflation
assumption 1s not applicable to the remaining schemes included in the disclosure
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18. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
The mortality assumptions used give the following life expectations at 65

Mortality Life expectancy at age Life expectancy at
table 65 for a male member age 65 for a female
currently: member currently:

Aged 65  Aged d5 Aged 65 Aged

45
31 December 2009
Korea Korean Life 811 776 851 836
Table 2006
31 December 2008
Korea Korean Life 311 776 851 836
Table 2006

The sensutrvities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme habihities are as follows

Assumption Change in assumption Impact on scheme liabilities
Korean Plan

Discount rate Increase by 0 5% Decrease by 5 75%

Rate of increase in salaries Increase by 0 5% Increase by 6 34%

Rate of mortality Increase by 1 year Increase by less than 0 02%

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in paragraph 95C of FRS 17 ‘Renirement Benefits'
and has not restated the first of the previous four accounting penieds required by FRS 17 paragraph 77(0)
Quoted secunties have therefore been valued at mid-market value for the first two periods shown and at
current bid price for the remaring periods in the tabie below (the most recent two prior periods have been
restated)

The four year history of experience adjustments 1s as follows

31 December 31 December 30 November 30 November

2009 2008 2007 2006
$nullions $millions $millions $mullions
Present value of defined benefit 6 4 5 5
obligation
Fair value of plan assets 2 2 2 2
Deficit 4) (2) (3) 3)
Experience adjustments on scheme
liabilities
Amount ($'000) (1,197) 132 (108) 155
Percentage of plan labilities (%) (19%) 3% (2%) 3%
Experience adjustments on scheme assets
Amount ($°000) 112 (134) (48) (8)
Percentage of plan assets (%) 6% (7%) (2%) (1%)
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19.

20.

21.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company 1s exempt from the requirement to disclose transactions with fellow Group undertakings
under paragraph 3(c) of FRS 8 Related Party Disclosures There were no other related party transactions
requiring disclosure

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 8 April 2010 the UK government enacted legislation as part of the 2010 Finance Act imposing a Bank
Payroll Tax The tax applies to discretionary bonuses over a certain amount awarded to certain
employees within scope (“Banking Employees™) m the period from 9 December 2009 to 5 April 2010
The hability for the tax will be that of the entity that benefits from the services of the Banking Employees,
rather than the employing entity The Company is still evaluating the impact of this legislation and has
recognised a charge of $256 million in 2010, when the legislation was enacted, based on the minimum
amount currently estimated will be payable by the Company in August 2010 Due to the ongoing
uncertamties regarding the application, scope and implementation of the legislation, the final payment
amount may differ from this estimated financial effect

PARENT UNDERTAKINGS

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling entity and the largest group of which the Company 1s a
member and for which group financial statements are prepared 1s Morgan Stanley Morgan Stanley 1s
incorporated 1n Delaware, the United States of America and copies of 1its financial statements can be
obtamed from 25 Cabot Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 4QA

The parent undertaking of the smallest group of companies for which group financiat statements are
drawn up and of which the Company 15 a member 1s Morgan Stanley International Limited which 1s
registered 1n England and Wales Copues of its financial statements can be obtamed from the Registrar of
Compantes for England and Wales, Companies House, Crown Way, Maindy, Cardiff CFl4 3UZ
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